
   
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 
 
 

 

19 November 2019 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) on 
Wednesday, 27th November, 2019 at 6.30 pm 

in the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR 

 
PHIL DRURY 
Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Paul Goodale 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Colin Woodcock 
 Councillors Alison Austin, Alan Bell, Anton Dani, Anne Dorrian, 

Viven Edge, Deborah Evans, Martin Griggs, Neill Hastie, 
Brian Rush, Yvonne Stevens and Stephen Woodliffe 
 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

B   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 12) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting held on the 2nd October 2019. 
 

  

Public Document Pack



 
 

C   UPDATE ON ACTIONS FROM THE MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  
 

 To report progress on outstanding actions from the minutes of the last meeting, for 
information only. 
 

D   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

E   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on 22nd November 2019. 
 

F   PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME  
 

 To allow members of the public to address the Committee. 
 

 
PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   2020-21 EVENTS PROGRAMME UPDATE (Pages 13 - 20) 
 

 (An item presented by the Chairman, Councillor Paul Goodale) 
 

2   SETTING UP A TOWN COUNCIL (Pages 21 - 66) 
 

 (An item presented by the Chairman, Councillor Paul Goodale) 
 

3   BTAC 2019/20 FINANCIAL POSITION UPDATE AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2019 
(Pages 67 - 72) 
 

 (A report by Paul Julian, Chief Finance Officer)   
 

4   UPDATE ON TOWN CENTRE OPERATIVES ACTIVITY (Pages 73 - 84) 
 

 (A report to be presented by Phil Perry, Head of Place and Space)  
 

5   PROPOSED REMOVAL OF BT PAYPHONES (Pages 85 - 88) 
 

 (An item presented by the Chairman, Councillor Paul Goodale) 
 

6   WORK PROGRAMME 2019-20 (Pages 89 - 90) 
 

 (For Members to note/discuss)  
 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, 01205 314227  email: 
janette.collier@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer as soon as possible. 
 

Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 

Emergency Procedures 
In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are asked to leave the building 

via the nearest emergency exit and make their way to the Fire Assembly Point 
located in the car park at the rear of the Municipal Buildings. 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 
 

2 October 2019 

Present: Councillor Paul Goodale (Chairman), Councillor Colin Woodcock (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Alistair Arundell, Alan Bell, Anton Dani, Anne Dorrian, 
Viven Edge, Martin Griggs, Neill Hastie, Brian Rush and Stephen Woodliffe 
 
Officers –  
Head of Place and Space, Accountancy Manager (Revenues and Systems), Local 
Communities Development Officer & BTAC Grant Administrator, Town Centre Services 
Manager and Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 
Also attending: Councillor Aaron Spencer 
 
Guest: Inspector Fran Harrod, Lincolnshire Police  
 
20   APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Alison Austin, Deborah Evans 
and Yvonne Stevens 
 
21   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the Committee’s last meeting, held on 21st August 2019, were agreed as 
a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
22   UPDATE ON ACTIONS FROM THE MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

 
The Head of Place and Space updated the Committee as follows: 
 
Action: Examine the software that details the locations on the ‘before and after 
photographs’ of the report on the work of the BTAC Operatives. 
 
The IT section had been consulted and they advised that the GPS system could not 
always access the exact location for these photographs and simply defaulted to the 
nearest reference point available.   
 
Action: Report back on the light levels of the new CCTV cameras to be installed in 
Central Park and whether they would identify faces at night, and whether they would be 
multi-head cameras. 
 
The improvement of the quality of images following the replacement of the cameras was 
clearly illustrated in the report on BTAC Assets – Tour of Open Spaces (Minute 28 
refers). 
 
Action: Report back on the requirements of insurance, training etc. if a volunteer group 
was to be formed to lock the gates of Central Park. 
 
Initially, it was for the lead organiser to submit a list of volunteers and, if there were 
sufficient to cover opening and closure of the gates twice a day on a 365-day rota, this 
would be taken forward as soon as possible. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item B



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
2 October 2019 
 

 

23   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 

Councillor Stephen Woodliffe declared that, as he was a member of Blackfriars’ Arts 
Centre and had a link with the Centenary Chapel through the Church, he would not take 
part in the debate or vote on the BTAC Small Grants applications from those 
organisations (Minute 27 refers). 
 
24   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
No questions had been submitted two clear working days prior to the meeting. 
 
25   PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME 

 
A member of the public addressed the Committee and asked a question, but was 
advised that if he gave his contact details he would receive an answer outside of the 
meeting. 
 
Inspector Fran Harrod, Boston’s Policing Inspector, addressed the Committee. 
 
Giving a general overview of policing activity in August 2019, the Committee heard that 
there had been 1,351 calls for the service, compared to 1,219 in August 2018, and 578 
crimes had subsequently been recorded (not all calls related to crimes).  There had 
been a significant increase in the number of crimes reported online.  The top 5 crimes 
reported were assault without injury; assault with injury; shoplifting; public fear / alarm / 
distress; and general theft.   
 
Since May, work had been ongoing to deal with the public’s fear of crime, mainly relating 
to street drinking and public urination and defecation.  Officers had met with Community 
Safety Officers, who were key to this matter, and had revised their approach to street 
drinking.  In August 2019, 27 initial advice letters had been issued with respect to the 
Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) following the successful confiscation of alcohol.  
Part figures for September were that 11 initial advice letters had been issued, 3 cases 
had moved on to the warning letter and one had received a community protection 
warning.  If a person who had received the initial advice letter re-offended, the 
information would be fed back directly to the Council’s Community Safety team.  Not 
having an address was not a bar to receiving a warning.  The next step would be to 
issue a notice, but this was not a police procedure; it was a matter for the Community 
Safety team.   
 
Inspector Harrod hoped that this gave reassurance that the police focused on matters 
known to cause distress and that they were listening to the public.  A significant amount 
of work was ongoing to improve matters in the long-term and Councillors who had 
shadowed the police had been quite impressed.   
 
The Police and Crime Commissioner had recently visited the Council to address 
Members and had acknowledged the high level of the fear of crime in Boston and 
confirmed his intention to secure officers for Boston in the next recruitment uplift.  Work 
was ongoing with Boston College to try to ensure that more future officers were from the 
local area. 
 

Page 2



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
2 October 2019 

 

 

With respect to homelessness and begging, work was ongoing with respect to 
enforcement and also with offering help and assistance. 
 
Inspector Harrod suggested that information on the 101 service could be presented to a 
future meeting if Members wished.  Members of the public who had complained about 
the service had been asked to provide screenshots, but as yet none had been received.  
 
In response to questions, Inspector Harrod reported that the Chief Officer of Police was 
working towards securing 350-400 officers for Lincolnshire and to achieve the capacity 
to train them.  (There were no longer national police training colleges and each force 
had to carry out training itself, which was a daunting task.)  It was not known where this 
number would be specifically deployed but the PCC would ensure that Boston was 
allocated its fair share due to the recognised level of fear of crime (allocation was not 
purely based on crime figures).  
 
Inspector Harrod confirmed that the decision had been taken years previously to pass 
responsibility for parking enforcement to the County Council.  
 
Members’ comments included recognition of the pressure the police were under; 
concern that Boston should receive its fair share of future police officers; the importance 
of joint discussions between the Council and the police; and appreciation of police 
reports to public meetings.   
 
There was still concern about incidents of street drinking and urination.  In response, 
Inspector Harrod explained that it would be unrealistic to imagine  that it could be 
eliminated, but they all needed to work together to keep it at controllable levels.   
 
In response to concern that the fear of crime was increased by the media, Inspector 
Harrod confirmed that the force have officers to address this.  A vast amount of 
information was sent out and, although the police were achieving good results on a daily 
basis, negative social media comments were damaging.  This was not to play down 
negative incidents, they had to be acknowledged, but the police could look to improve 
how they communicated the facts. 
 
The police had a variety of methods to deal with low-level drug offences, depending on 
age and previous incidents.   
 
The Chairman thanked Inspector Harrod and urged Members to send as many 
questions as possible in advance of the meeting.   
 
A Member suggested that the Inspector’s attendance should be a standing item at each 
meeting, and if she was unable to attend, that she could send through facts and figures.  
Inspector Harrod confirmed that she was happy to attend future meetings and, if she 
was unable to do so, she would prepare responses for the Committee and send a 
sergeant in her place. 
 
Inspector Harrod then responded to questions submitted by Members prior to the 
meeting.   
 
With respect to travellers and their impact on Boston, Inspector Harrod reported that 
there had been four recent encampments, one that had come through from Spalding.  

Page 3



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
2 October 2019 
 

 

One had moved on quickly, another had caused no problems, but their presence had 
been an issue.  If a landowner stated that travellers were not welcome on their land, the 
police could use section 61 powers to move them on.  Difficulties were caused when an 
encampment was causing issues, but a landowner did not turn up to give this statement.  
Legal action was being taken to the High Court to enable attendance on behalf of 
landowners and county-wide work was ongoing to accelerate the process.  There were 
two elements to dealing with encampments: the landowner had to state that they did not 
want them on their land and/or they were causing damage, threatening the landowner or 
there were 6 or more vehicles present. 
 
In conclusion, Inspector Harrod stated that the encampments had not had a significant 
impact on Boston and the police were working well with the Council’s Community Safety 
team on the matter. 
 
A Member suggested that Boston’s County Councillors be asked to assist when County 
Council attendance was necessary.  Inspector Harrod confirmed that the Community 
Safety Manager was looking into this.   
 
A second question put before the meeting related to the number of incidents when 
PCSOs and police officers had telephoned the CCTV section and not received an 
answer.  Inspector Harrod reported that there had been one specific event and it was 
understood that there had only been one CCTV operative on duty and this could happen 
when that operative was under pressure.  Anecdotally, officers had said that it happened 
occasionally, but they would simply try to ring again or the control room would phone 
through and take their own steps.   
 
Inspector Harrod then stated the figures relating to crimes reported specifically within 
Central Park: 103 in 2016; 83 in 2017; 99 in 2018 and 94 so far in 2019.  This showed 
there was a slight trend upwards, but not a significant spike to bring to Members’ 
attention. 
 
In response to questions, it was explained that the reports in 2016 and 2017 had been 
mainly in the daytime and related to street drinking.  In 2019, the reports related to a 
wider range of incidents and were no longer dominated by street drinking.  In the town 
centre, one constable and four PCSOs were on routine patrol and the park was patrolled 
daily, with the response team usually responding to specific incidents.   
 
A Member spoke in favour of locking the park gates at night, believing it would 
discourage anti-social behaviour and save police time, and also that repairs should be 
carried out to prevent access to the park by other means, such as through a hole in one 
of the fences.  Another Member asserted that problems arose in the daytime.   
 
26   BTAC 2019/20 FINANCIAL POSITION UPDATE AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019 

 
The Accountancy Manager - Revenues & Systems presented a report to members 
which provided an update to members on the BTAC financial position, showing the 
budge and projected outturn (full-year spend) for the 2019/20 year, and the project 
BTAC reserve at the year-end 31st March 2020.   
 

Page 4



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
2 October 2019 

 

 

As an update, it was reported that the funds available for unallocated projects now stood 
at £86,000 and the forecasted closing balance on BTAC’s reserve monies was now 
£122,000. 
 
Members queried the amount of £70,000 as the minimum to be held to allow for 
contingencies.  It was explained that this was the amount that the Section 151 Officer 
recommended as the minimum. 
 

Action: PJ 
An explanation for the reason for the amount set as minimum for contingencies to be 
included within the finance report to the next meeting. 

 
27   BTAC SMALL GRANT SCHEME 

 
[Councillor Stephen Woodliffe withdrew to the public gallery and took no part in the 
debate or vote on the grant applications.] 
 
The Local Communities Development Officer and BTAC Grant Administrator presented 
a report which set out the details of the applications received in the current round by the 
Small Grants Working Group in respect of applications received for the current round.  
 
The Local Communities Development Officer and BTAC Grant Administrator presented 
a report, which set out the details of applications considered by the Small Grants 
Working Group received so far in the Municipal Year.  
 
Normally, there would be four rounds of grant applications, but the first round had been 
delayed due to the May elections and had been amalgamated into the second round.  A 
sheet detailing the Working Group’s recommendations and suggested awards was 
circulated to the meeting. 
 
In response to questions, it was explained that Singing For Fun was an over-50s Royal 
Voluntary Services project and the group had a professional teacher and sang in homes 
across Boston.  The East Lincolnshire Downs Syndrome Family Support Group had 
identified a need within Boston and developed an independent group.   
 
During Members’ debate, there was appreciation that the message about the grant 
scheme was getting across and resulting in a variety of applications.  The issue of 
increasing the grants budget was raised, as it would be unfortunate to have to refuse an 
application when the Committee had a £70,000 contingency in the budget and it was 
agreed that the budget be increased by £5,000.   
 
Some Members felt that it should be a requirement of grant applications that local 
contractors be used.  The Head of Place and Space explained that the Council’s 
Procurement Rules allowed for local business quotes.  In response to further calls that 
the grant applicants be restricted to using local contractors, the Chairman suggested 
that wording be included in the advice to applicants to use local contractors if possible.   
 

Action: ME 
Add to BTAC Small Grants guidelines “Where reasonably possible, look to local 
businesses to carry out work”.   

Page 5



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
2 October 2019 
 

 

 
RESOLVED that:  
 
1. The Small Grants Working Group budget be increased by £5,000 in the current 

year. 
 

2. The recommendations of the Small Grant Working Group be endorsed as 
follows: 

 
Applicant Project Amount 

requested 
Suggested 
Award 

Working Group 
recommendations 

Willoughby 
Road Allotments 

Installation of an electric 
supply at the allotments 

£934.92  £934.92 Award the full amount 
requested. 

1st Boston 
Scouts 

Purchase camping 
equipment 

£1,000 £1,000 Award the full amount 
requested. 

Singing For Fun  Purchase small percussion 
instruments, music stands, 
branded scarves and ties, 
and contribute towards 
volunteer expenses and 
travel to performance 
venues. 

£1,000 £1,000 Award the full amount 
requested. 

Forbes Road 
Bowling Club 

Repairing the fence at the 
Bowling Club site 

£1,000 £800.00 To award a 
contribution to the 
cost of repairing the 
fence proportionate to 
the number of BTAC 
beneficiaries. 

East 
Lincolnshire 
Downs 
Syndrome 
Family Support 
Group 

Assist with one year’s rent 
at St Christopher’s Church 

£620.00 £620.00 Award the full amount 
requested on the 
condition that they 
have a year to source 
alternative ways to 
pay their rent.   

Blackfriars Arts 
Centre Ltd 

Contribute towards the cost 
of equipping a classroom at 
Shodfriars Hall to conduct 
guided tours from trained 
guides to increase 
awareness of their plans for 
developing the building into 
a community and heritage 
centre 

£1,000 NOT TO 
FUND 

Invite the applicant to 
reapply when they 
have secured more 
funds to begin this 
project. 

Centenary 
Methodist 
Chapel 

Contribute to the cost of 
planned programme of 
refurbishment work within 
the building 

£1,000 £800.00 To award £600 for 
replacement flooring 
and £200 for 
improvements to the 
performance area on 
the condition that this 
work is carried out at 
the start of their 
programme of 
refurbishment. 

 

Page 6



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
2 October 2019 

 

 

28   BTAC ASSETS- TOUR OF OPEN SPACES 
 

The Head of Place and Space presented an update from the BTAC public open spaces 
tour on 21st August 2019 following a request from Members. The update outlined 
matters which were raised during the tour in order to progress improvements and for 
consideration to be made for future developments.  
 
Details of specific discussions held during the tour were included in Appendix A.  
Appendix B showed images, which compared the quality of cameras before and after 
replacement.  Appendix C contained consultation responses that included a ‘wish list’ of 
further improvements requested by the consultees. 
 
During the tour, Members were pleased with the progress of improvements already 
carried out on BTAC open spaces and felt these had made a significant contribution to 
improving the quality of those spaces provided in the town and that the plans discussed 
for further development would encourage greater, more positive use of public open 
spaces. 
 
It was anticipated that a future report would be submitted to BTAC by the sub group to 
provide cost details in relation to those improvements identified for 2019/20.  
 
In response to a question, it was explained that consideration had been given to selling 
the Pavilion building, but the fabric did not have value if deconstructed.  The building 
would be taken down in-house, which would be significantly less expensive, though it 
was still subject to obtaining the necessary planning permission and other 
considerations.  The planning application would need to go through the Planning 
Committee due to the size of the building.    
 
29   REVIEW OF 2019/20 EVENTS AND LOOKING FORWARD TO 2020/21 

EVENTS PROGRAMME 
 

[Councillor Alistair Arundell declared that he organised part of the Boston Bike Night 
event and ran the bar and that he was the Portfolio Holder for Events, but was speaking 
at the meeting as a Member of BTAC.] 
 
The Town Centre Services Manager presented a report which provided an update on 
the 2019/20 programme for the Committee to note and options for a planned events 
programme for the 2020/21 financial year.  The report included budgeted financial 
breakdowns covering both financial years, to support the Committee in its deliberations. 
 
The Town Centre Services Manager reported that the events during 2019/20 had been 
fantastic once again.  An additional document was circulated to the meeting with 
photographs illustrating the successful events held during the year.  The events had 
been funded by BTAC and the Boston Big Local and catered for the whole family.  The 
Events Team and Safety Advisory Group had also provided advice and support to a 
number of events within Boston run by external providers, which provided a more varied 
programme for Boston residents and drew more visitors into the town.   
 
The report then set out three options for Members’ consideration for delivering an events 
programme during 2020/21.  It was pointed out that the Christmas Market and Lights 
Switch-On event had been developed and fully funded through the Controlling Migration 

Page 7



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
2 October 2019 
 

 

Fund programme, but that this funding was coming to an end during 2019/20 and would 
add cost to the events programme going forward.   
 
The three options, all of which included the Christmas Market and Lights Switch-On 
event, were set out as follows: 
 

 Option One: incorporates some larger scale events in addition to the existing 
community based events.  This option aims to keep all the free community 
events, which people have enjoyed this year but adds/combines some of the 
existing larger scale events, some of which would have or could have a charge 
on entry.  A major cost for the 2020/21 budget is the return of the Christmas 
Market & Lights Switch on event (not including the provision of lights) within the 
budget, which has recently been funded through Controlling Migration Funding.  
Option one, would cost BTAC an additional £27,000 for the 2020/21 financial year 
and a detailed breakdown of this programme is appended (Appendix B). 

 

 Option Two: focuses on larger scale events within the BTAC funded events 
programme with a more limited programme of smaller scale community focussed 
events delivered principally through the BBL funding stream. This option could be 
delivered with an additional £12,000 for the 2020/21 financial year as shown in 
Appendix C. 
 

 Option Three: retains the existing BTAC budget at £41,500 and the 
programme is reduced to retain current spending as shown in Appendix D, again 
this option focuses on larger scale events within the BTAC funded event 
programme, and a limited programme of smaller scale events funded entirely 
through the BBL funding.   

 
It was noted that two events identified within all options had already been committed to 
for 2020 – a Teenage Market and a Through the Ages event – due to the need to make 
bookings in advance, though Members could consider not continuing with these events 
if they so wished. 
 
The Events Team sought sponsorship where feasible within existing resources.  Details 
and options were set out in Appendix E should a Member Working Group wish to seek 
additional sponsorship.    
 
During debate, Members voiced support for the larger events, particularly the 1940s 
Event, Boston Show and the Party in the Park, and favoured Option 1 as the additional 
£27,000 would be needed to keep the existing smaller events and support the running of 
the larger events.   
 
Members’ comments included the need for Members to help increase advertising of 
events and to interact more with local businesses, for example suggesting shops and 
cafes remain open during Bike Night and reference was made to the importance of the 
Christmas events. 
 

Action: PP/KW 
Extend the Committee’s appreciation to the volunteers involved with the Christmas 
Lights event and those already preparing for this year.   

Page 8



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
2 October 2019 

 

 

 
It was suggested that an advertising banner would be a good value purchase.  Other 
ideas put forward for advertising were crowd barrier covers and the sides of pool cars.    
 
Members referred to the success of the Party in the Park in previous years and 
reference was made to its effect on community cohesion.  In response to questions, the 
Town Centre Services Manager confirmed that the numbers planned for the Party in the 
Park were not as high as in previous years, but it could be expanded again; many 
events had been developed and improved over time as more people were realising that 
there were things to do in Boston rather than having to go outside the borough.   
 
The Town Centre Services Manager added that it was beneficial to agree an events 
programme at this stage as it would allow an events leaflet to be sent out with council 
tax bills.   
 
In response to questions regarding the Outdoor Cinema, the Town Centre Services 
Manager reported that the first two events had not made a profit, but they had learned 
from the experience, for example, hiring toilet facilities.  The next two events had made 
money, with one event being a sell-out.  The most recent event had been disappointing, 
with 200 out of a maximum of 500 tickets sold.  The reasons were not clear, as the 
tickets prices were reasonable and there had been positive feedback from the event; 
however, the events were being constantly reviewed and could be replaced in time with 
others, such as outdoor theatre.   
 
A Member explained that this year’s Bike Night had been relocated to Central Park 
because it relied heavily on volunteers and there had not been enough.  Fewer 
volunteers were needed to hold the event in the park.  Different funding possibilities 
would be explored with a view to holding the event in the Market Place again in future.  
The Town Centre Services Manager added appreciation for the hard work of the 
volunteers; the Events Team supported them when possible and were keen to work with 
them as a group.   
 

Resolved: That it be recommended to Cabinet that an additional £27,000 
expenditure be approved in order to go ahead with Option One for the 2020/21 
Events Programme, as set out in Appendix B, attached.  

 
[Councillor Brian Rush left the meeting at 8.25 pm] 
 
30   UPDATE ON TOWN CENTRE OPERATIVES ACTIVITY 

 
With the Chairman’s permission, the Leader of the Council addressed the Committee on 
a matter of urgency.  Having taken the decision, in liaison with the Chairman, to keep 
the town’s public toilets open overnight on a 3-month trial basis, starting on 2nd 
September, with the Council to pay for the costs, the Leader reported the substantial 
damage that had since been inflicted on the facilities.  The decision had been taken in 
response to calls for the facilities to be available to reduce incidents of urination and 
defecation during the night.  As there had been no evidence of any reduction in such 
incidents during this period, the Leader asked for the Committee’s views on whether this 
trial should be terminated early, as considerable costs would be incurred if it was run for 

Page 9



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
2 October 2019 
 

 

the entire 3 months.  Furthermore, the toilets were mainly for daytime use and it was 
reasonable for people to expect them to be in good working order.   
 
The Leader read out some of the details of the vandalism and costs.  A breakdown of 
the costs incurred so far had been shown to the Chairman and could be e-mailed to 
BTAC Members.  The damage was primarily to the Central Park toilets and drug 
paraphernalia was also left there, a health and safety risk in itself.  The Leader accepted 
that the trial could continue for the full 3 months if the Committee wished to have more 
data, but stressed the costs, health risks and facilities not being usable for the majority 
accessing the toilets during the day.   
 
During debate, there was a view that the trial should end immediately in order to prevent 
the waste of public money and protect the Council’s assets, which the Committee 
maintained and  that opening the toilets at night did not address problems of urination 
and anti-social behaviour.   
 
In response to an assertion that problems of vandalism etc. had been occurring when 
the toilets opened at their normal early-morning opening time, the Leader confirmed that 
the number of incidents occurring had dramatically increased since the facilities were left 
open overnight and had done so as soon as the overnight opening had commenced.  
More innovative solutions to the problems referred to could be considered instead, 
though even if the vandalism and anti-social behaviour had not occurred, the 24-hour 
opening had not reduced incidents of urination and defecation so it would be difficult to 
substantiate the cost of, for example, anti-vandal toilets and how this would be funded.  
Solutions working in other areas could be explored.   
 
Another view expressed was that the full trial period should, perhaps, be considered, 
particularly as the trial was started in response to issues raised at a meeting called by 
the public, so that the evidence was clear that the trial was not working.  Members then 
went on to discuss concerns about rough-sleeping, highlighted by one facility being used 
overnight for this purpose.    
 
Members discussed possible options.  As mentioned by the Chief Inspector, people 
congregated in Central Park; therefore, the other two facilities did not need to be open at 
night.  However, it was at the Central Park toilets where most of the vandalism had 
occurred; therefore, it would be best to close these.  It was possible that problems might 
move to the other facilities, but some action had to be taken, as, in addition to the cost of 
vandalism and health risks of drug paraphernalia, there was the costs of Council 
workers having to clear up the mess and deal with damage, as well as residents not 
being able to use facilities that they paid for.  On the other hand, a commitment had 
been made to run a 3-month trial and the evidence that the opening had had no impact 
on incidents of urination and defecation could be classed as anecdotal.  The information 
on the costs and damage needed to be fed back to those who had called for the public 
meeting on the matter.   
 

RESOLVED: That the Central Park toilets should be closed overnight with 
immediate effect, that the other two facilities be left open overnight for one month 
and, if problems continued, then they should also be closed.  

 

Page 10



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
2 October 2019 

 

 

The Leader then formally requested that the Head of Place and Space should action the 
overnight closure of the Central Park toilets. 
 
The Head of Place and Space then presented the regular report detailing the work 
undertaken by the BTAC Operatives.  
 
In response to questions, it was explained that cast iron bins were refurbished and 
reused whenever possible.  Plastic bins that had been vandalised, thrown in the river 
etc., were replaced with cast iron bins.  Any cast iron bins that could not be refurbished 
would be disposed of through a scrap merchant. 
 

Action: PP 
Report back on the cost to the Council of scrapping cast iron bins. 

 
31   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
The Chairman suggested Members e-mail him with details of an any other items for 
future agendas.   
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting ended at 9.10 pm 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 

DATE: 27 NOVEMBER 2019 

SUBJECT: 

 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

2020/21 EVENTS PROGRAMME UPDATE 

 

CLLR PAUL GOODALE, BTAC CHAIRMAN 

EXEMPT REPORT: No 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 
This report provides an update on the outcome of BTAC’s recommendation to the 23 
October Cabinet Meeting, when it considered the planned programme of events for 
the 2020/21 financial year, with an increased budget of £27,000 to support the 
delivery. 
 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That this committee determines the way forward.  

 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To advise Members of the Cabinet’s decision and seek views on the way forward. 
  
 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 

 Not to present an update to this meeting. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 1



REPORT:  

 
1.0  Introduction 
 
1.1 The BTAC budget incorporates a number of services for the residents of 

Boston including event delivery.   
 
 

2.0 BTAC Report on Event Delivery 2019/20 Financial Year 
 

2.1  As a reminder to members, the Town Centre Services Manager presented a 
 report at the 2 October 2019 BTAC meeting, which provided an update on the 
 2019/20 programme for the Committee to note and options for a planned 
 events programme for the 2020/21 financial year.  The report included 
 budgeted financial breakdowns covering both financial years, to support the 
 Committee in its deliberations. 
 
2.2 The report set out three options for Members’ consideration for delivering an 
 events programme during 2020/21.  It was pointed out that the Christmas 
 Market and Lights Switch-On event had been developed and fully funded 
 through the Controlling Migration Fund programme, but that this funding was 
 ending during 2019/20 and would add cost to the events programme going 
 forward.   
 
2.3 The three options, all of which included the Christmas Market and Lights 
 Switch-On event, were set out as follows: 
 

 Option One: incorporated some larger scale events in addition to the 
existing community based events.  This option aimed to keep all the free 
community events, which people have enjoyed this year but add/combine 
some of the existing larger scale events, some of which would have or 
could have a charge on entry.  Option One, would cost BTAC an additional 
£27,000 for the 2020/21 financial year. 

 

 Option Two: focused on larger scale events within the BTAC funded events 
programme with a more limited programme of smaller scale community 
focussed events delivered principally through the BBL funding stream. This 
option could be delivered with an additional £12,000 for the 2020/21 
financial year. 
 

 Option Three: retained the existing BTAC budget at £41,500 and the 
programme reduced to retain current spending, again this option focused 
on larger scale events within the BTAC funded event programme, and a 
limited programme of smaller scale events funded entirely through the BBL 
funding.   

 
2.4 During debate, Members voiced support for the larger events, particularly the 
 1940s Event, Boston Show and the Party in the Park, and favoured Option 1 

Page 14



 as the additional £27,000 would be needed to keep the existing smaller events 
 and support the running of the larger events.   
 
2.5 Due to the proposed expenditure being above the delegated limit of £10,000, 
 BTAC resolved that it be recommended to Cabinet that an additional £27,000 
 expenditure be approved in order to go ahead with Option One for the 2020/21 
 Events Programme. 

 

 

3. Cabinet Meeting 
 
3.1 Cabinet at its 23 October meeting considered the recommendation and I 

addressed Cabinet to present the committee’s recommendation and offered to 
answer any questions Cabinet Members might have. 
 

3.2 Members were supportive of BTAC’s wish to provide an events programme for 
2020/21, but concern was expressed that as the Portfolio Holder for Events 
who had worked with officers to draw up the programme was no longer in 
post, it would be appropriate to defer the item to allow a new Portfolio Holder 
to have their input.  The Leader confirmed that, in the interim period, he would 
be taking on the Tourism, Arts, Culture and Heritage Portfolio and suggested 
that an alternative method of delivery could be considered by using community 
groups and providing grant funding to support their activities.  Cabinet had a 
duty to ensure all funding was spent wisely and proportionately and the 
proposed expenditure should be scrutinised in detail before being agreed.  
The information presented to Cabinet was not considered sufficient to make 
an informed decision. 

 
3.3 I stated that if Cabinet were not to approve the requested budget, it would 

have a significant detrimental effect on the ability to adequately plan and 
organise to achieve delivery of the events programme.  I also added that the 
budget for 2020/21 had reduced by £25,000 due to the cessation of the 
Controlling Migration Fund contribution, which would potentially result in the 
number of events in the proposed programme being reduced. 
 

3.4 The Chief Executive clarified that decisions with regard to BTAC ‘activity’ 
rested with the Executive, but had been delegated by Cabinet to BTAC. A limit 
of £10,000 had been included whereby consent to spend over that threshold 
was to be brought to Cabinet.  Decisions relating to the detail and delivery of 
BTAC funded events rested with BTAC. 
 

3.5 Cabinet’s decision was for the request for approval of an additional £27,000 
expenditure for the 2020/21 events programme to be deferred until the next 
meeting of the Cabinet, for a detailed report on the proposed events and 
associated expenditure to be considered. 
 

3.6 I subsequently asked Officers to draft an alternative proposal that did not 
require Cabinet’s intervention as an alternative option and this option is 
attached to the report.  This proposal is based on Option Two, as detailed in 
paragraph 2.3, which would have cost an additional £12,000.  Where Option 

Page 15



One aimed to keep all the free community events and add/combine some of 
the existing larger scale events, Option Two focused on larger scale events 
within the BTAC funded events programme with a more limited programme of 
smaller scale community events delivered principally through the BBL funding 
stream.  The revised Option re-profiles some events to reduce the Option Two 
additional cost by £2,000 to keep within the £10,000 BTAC delegated 
authority.    
 

 
4.0  Conclusion  
 
4.1 It is now for the committee to consider the way forward.  
  

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The annual events budget is £41,500.  It is proposed that any additional sums 
approved above this sum, be funded from the existing unallocated BTAC reserve in 
2020/21. 
 

 

LEGAL & EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Council is required to conform to the requirements of the EU Procurement 
Directive and its own Contract Procurement and Procedure Rules Part 4 (H) of the 
Constitution. 
 
The Council uses its powers to encourage tourism within the Borough through the 
Local Government Act 1972, section 144. 
 
There are no equality implications within this report, any equality implications arising 
from an individual event are identified and managed through individual event planning 
processes and risk assessment.  
 

 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 

 
CONSULTATION 
 

 N/A 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Chairman’s revised option budget – 2020/21  
 
 

 

Page 16



 

 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the production of this report. 
 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

 
A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body. 
 
 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Chairman's Revised Option budget - 2020/21

2020
Date of Event Event Comments Predicted Outgoings Projected Income

Jun-20 -£ -£

Sat 13th and Sun 14th June
1940s Two day event and
Entertainment in the Market Place

£6,000 is put in by BBL and the income in
spilt into a BBL pot and income for BTAC 1,600.00£ -£

Jul-20

Sat 4th July Teenage Market
Working with Lincoln University, committed
for 2020 900.00£ -£

Sat 4th and Sun 5th July Through The Ages
Remove Boston Show element and do a
bigger hostorical event??? 11,000.00£ 1,000.00£

Friday 24th July Get Cycling Roadshow Funded by BBL -£ -£

Saturday 25th July Party in the Park Central Park 13,600.00£ 4,000.00£

Aug-20
Beach in Situ Funded by BBL

Family Fun Sessions Free Family Fun - (messy hands and feet painting/pirate gold digging/arts & crafts) 1,899.99£ -£

Friday 7th August Active Boston -£ -£

Thurs 13th & Fri 14th August Beach Event
Funded by BBL, including deckchairs and
addditional focus beach sessions -£ -£

Nov-20

APPENDIX 1

P
age 19



Page 2 Chairman's Revised Option budget - 2020/21

Thurs 26th November
Christmas Market/Lights Switch on
and Illuminate Parade 14,500.00£ 3,000.00£

Outdoor Cinema Nights
Hold a minimum of 2 outdoor cinema nights, looking to cover costs but £2.5k for financial security 2,500.00£ 2,500.00£

External event income projected - TBC
45,999.99£ 10,500.00£

*General spend is bits that are used for all events, toilets, cables, kit, *General Spend 4,100.00£ 8,170.00£
safety matting, BTAC operatives
ovetime payments Total 50,099.99£

Budget 40,100.00£ £14,000
Compare to Budget 9,999.99-£ 4,670.00£P

age 20



 
 
 
 
SETTING UP A TOWN COUNCIL 
 
 
AN ITEM TO BE PRESENTED BY THE CHAIRMAN 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION FOLLOWS IN THE FORM OF REPORTS AND 
MINUTES PREVIOUSLY CONSIDERED BY THE COMMITTEE WITH LINKS TO THE 
INTERNET FOR FURTHER INFORMATION 

Page 21

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

REPORT TO:  BOSTON TOWN AMENTIY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 13 FEBRUARY 2013 

SUBJECT: FORMATION OF A TOWN COUNCIL 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

REPORT AUTHOR: CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
This report is for information only and briefly sets out the process for the 
formation of a Town Council. 
 
 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Committee discuss and note the information within the report. 
 
 

 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The report was requested by a member of the Committee. 
 
 

 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
Not to discuss the item. 
 
 

 

 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 23



REPORT 
 
1.0 The current procedure for this is very complicated and long winded.  

The Department of Communities and Local Government are currently 
consulting on a simple system. 

 
2.0 A Town Council would have a similar constitution and powers as a 

Parish Council.  It would need its own offices and professional staff. 
 
3.0 The process starts with either a local authority choosing to carry out a 

community governance review or the individuals within a community 
petitioning the local authority to create a Town Council.  The petition 
should also cover the boundaries for the new authority. 

 
4.0 The petition must have the following signatories: 
 

- 50 per cent of the electors for neighbourhood areas with fewer than 
500 electors: 

- 250 electors for areas with between 500 and 2,500 electors: or 
- 10 per cent of the electors for areas with over 2,500 electors. 

 
5.0 Once the petition is received the local authority must set up a 

Community Governance Review and set its terms of reference. 
 
6.0 The review must be completed within 12 months of agreeing the Terms 

of Reference. 
 
7.0 The local authority can choose to review governance arrangements for 

the area petitioned or a wider area as they see fit. 
 
8.0 The local authority will consult the community on the proposed Town 

Council and the effects on the wider authority. 
 
9.0 If the local authority decides to create a new Council it will be 

constituted at the next local election. 
 
10.0 Once a decision is made to go ahead a Shadow Council can be formed 

to assist with the transition. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
That the information contained within the report be discussed and noted. 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None at this stage, as this report is for information only; however, significant 
resources would be required to fund a Community Governance Review. 
 

 

Page 24



 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None at this stage. 

 
 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 

 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
None. 
 
 
 

APPENDICES 
 
None. 
 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 
 

 
Making it easier to set up new 
town and parish councils 

 
Department for Communities and Local 
Government website 
 

 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

 
 A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body.   
 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Making it easier to set up new town and 
parish councils 

Discussion paper 
 
 
 
 
  
 

October 2012 
Department for Communities and Local Government 

Page 27



© Crown copyright, 2012 
 
Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown. 
 
 
You may re-use this information (not including logos) free of charge in any format or medium, under the 
terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence, visit www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-
government-licence/ or write to the Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, London TW9 
4DU, or email: psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk. 
 
This document/publication is also available on our website at www.communities.gov.uk 
 
If you have any enquiries regarding this document/publication, email contactus@communities.gov.uk or 
write to us at: 
 
Department for Communities and Local Government 
Eland House 
Bressenden Place 
London  
SW1E 5DU 
Telephone: 030 3444 0000  
 
October 2012 
 
ISBN: 978-1-4098-3611-7

 
Page 28

http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/
mailto:psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk
http://www.communities.gov.uk/
mailto:contactus@communities.gsi.gov.uk


Introduction 

The Government wants to make it easier to set up new town and parish 
councils. This discussion paper presents a range of proposals that would help 
achieve this. We would like your views on these, as well as any other 
comments or ideas. Details of how to contribute are at the end of this 
document. 

1. The neighbourhoods we live in are often the places where we are most ready to get 
involved. The government wants to make it as easy as possible for people to play an 
active part in society and improve their neighbourhoods. There are a number of new 
ways people can do this which have been created by the Localism Act 2011. Many 
of these do not require formal governance structures.  

2. Sometimes, neighbourhood level local governance can make it easier to take action. 
In many areas, there are town and parish councils, the most local level of 
government. These councils provide formal democratic representation for the 
neighbourhood and have the ability to deliver services to the community, as well as 
being able to influence other decision making bodies. There are around nine and a 
half thousand such councils in England, but they tend not to exist in more urban 
areas, and so sixty-three per cent of the population is not covered by one. 

3. There is a mechanism by which local authorities (district, borough or unitary 
councils) can decide to create new parish councils (which can then resolve to be 
called town, neighbourhood, village or community councils). This is called a 
‘community governance review’. However, a number of partners - individuals, 
members of town and parish councils and organisations which represent and support 
them have argued that this process has a number of problems. 

4. We want to make it easier and simpler for people to set up town and parish councils 
where they do not exist. We want to tilt the balance in favour of community groups, 
where there is the demonstrable support of a majority of local people.  Where local 
people express popular support for the creation of a town or parish council, the local 
authority should work with the community to achieve that. 

5. This paper therefore sets out three options to make the process for creating a new 
parish council simpler and better. 

3 

Page 29



Problems with the current process for 
setting up a new parish council 

6. The current process for setting up a new parish council is set out in the Local 
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 and in DCLG’s ‘Guidance on 
Community Governance Reviews, published in 2010. (This is available at 
www.communities.gov.uk/publications/localgovernment/guidancecommunitygoverna
nce2010.) A description of how the process works is set out at Annex A at the end of 
this paper.  

7. The current process presents a number of problems for those wanting a new parish 
council to be set up. 

• It’s demanding for campaigners. They must obtain the support of ten per cent of 
the electorate (or a greater proportion in smaller areas) to trigger a community 
governance review. A good working understanding of the local authority’s 
procedures may be required.  

• The process doesn’t allow designated neighbourhood forums for 
neighbourhood planning a distinct role in the process of creating a new parish 
council.  They have to trigger a review in the same way as any other group. 

• Community governance reviews have too wide a scope. They can cover the 
whole of the local authority area; consider a wide range of issues and consult a 
wide range of people. 

• It takes a long time. There is no time limit for a local authority to set the terms of 
reference for a community governance review; once it has done so, it can take up 
to a year to carry the review out. 

• There is no right of appeal. The 2007 legislation removed the requirement for 
the consent of the Secretary of State for the creation of the new town or parish 
councils. The Government believes that these should remain local decisions. 
Some campaigners have argued that a right of appeal would allow a community a 
redress if they felt that a local authority had been unfair in a decision not to create 
a new parish council. 

8. Any changes to the process for creating a new parish council should strike the right 
balance between making it simpler to set a new council up and ensuring that any 
new parish council has the support of local people. If, for example, the support of 
only a very few people was required to trigger or even to decide the process in 
favour of creating a new parish council, it might be created even when the majority of 
people were not in favour of its creation. That would make it redundant and 
potentially even an unwanted burden on the local community. 

 

Is this an accurate summary of the challenges within the current process for 
setting up a new parish council?

4 

Page 30

http://www.communities.gov.uk/publications/localgovernment/guidancecommunitygovernance2010
http://www.communities.gov.uk/publications/localgovernment/guidancecommunitygovernance2010


Options for making it easier to set up new 
parish councils 

9. As set out in paragraph four above, the Government believes that where local people 
express support for the creation of a town or parish council, the local authority should 
work with the community to achieve that. The following pages set out a range of 
options in support of that position, making it easier to set up new town and parish 
councils. 

10. For simplicity, a number of changes have been grouped together into three options. 
Elements of the various options are interchangeable and they are not in opposition to 
each other. For example, one approach might be to make some changes to statutory 
guidance (using elements of option one) and then to make some changes to the law 
using a Legislative Reform Order (using elements of options two and three.) The 
approach taken need not be exclusively and entirely to follow a single option. 

 

 

 

5 

Page 31



Option one - amending existing guidance 
11. This option proposes a number of changes to the existing system be made through 

the statutory guidance issued by the Secretary of State. Local authorities must have 
regard to this guidance in carrying out governance reviews.  

Timescales 

12. Although the maximum timescale for community governance reviews, twelve 
months, is established in the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health 
Act 2007, guidance could strongly encourage authorities to complete the process in 
less time. As the process must involve consultation, a review period of six months 
could be a reasonable period for the entire review. Guidance could also suggest that 
the terms of reference for a review should be set promptly, for example within three 
months. Currently there is no limit on this. 

Scope 

13. The current process requires that the local authority have regard to the need to 
secure that community governance within the area under review is effective and 
convenient. The amended guidance could make it clear that the right weight should 
be given to what is effective and convenient for the local community, separately from 
for the local authority itself. For example, a local authority may regard it as more 
convenient to have a single method of engaging communities across the local 
authority area. That may at present be a reason not to create a new town or parish 
council. That does not necessarily mean, though, that a new parish council would not 
be effective or convenient from the point of view of the community in a particular 
area. (While there is no definitive interpretation of ‘effective and convenient’, with the 
words carrying their ordinary meaning, the current guidance explains effectiveness 
and convenience in terms of the proposed parish council being viable in terms of 
providing at least some services and easy to reach and accessible to local people.) 

14. Guidance could be changed to make governance reviews clearer about what 
considerations they take into account. It would still be open to a local authority to 
carry out a governance review covering a wider area than the neighbourhood area 
for which a parish council is proposed by campaigners. In such cases, though, the 
review should set out how the authority intends to take into account and balance the 
views of consultees in different areas.  

15. The guidance could be clear that a review can recommend different governance 
arrangements for different parts of the local authority area. The Government believes 
that different approaches in different parts of a local authority area are healthy and 
that diversity should be encouraged. This would reflect the rich tapestry that currently 
exists in many places. 

Internal review of decision 

16. While the government believes that the decision to create a new parish council 
should remain a local one rather than be subject to a right of appeal, guidance could 
propose that as a matter of good practice, the local authority could carry out a review 
of a decision not to create a town or parish council if campaigners want one. Local 

6 

Page 32



authorities will often have review mechanisms already. It should be made clear to 
campaigners what route they have within the local authority for review of a decision 
they are not happy with. The review could be carried out on the application of a 
specified number of local people - perhaps on payment of a fee, to discourage 
vexatious applications having little merit. We are interested to hear from local 
authorities about how this issue can best be addressed. 

Election timetables 

17. The community governance review process could be made to work better by 
positioning it relative to electoral cycles to avoid long delays between the start of a 
campaign and the first elections. The opportunity to present a petition could be linked 
to each electoral cycle. Working back from the date of an election, the local authority 
could set out a timetable for the various parts of the process which would need to be 
met in order to come to a final decision on a petition in time to fit with a forthcoming 
election. This would identify when a petition to create a new council could most 
conveniently be considered.  

Implementation 

18. Implementation of this option would involve amending existing statutory guidance. 
Local authorities would, as now, be obliged to have regard to this guidance. These 
changes to the statutory guidance would require a new burdens assessment to be 
carried out. 

Advantages and disadvantages 

19. The advantage of this approach are that the changes made by guidance are able to 
address many of the difficulties with the process outlined in paragraph seven. 

20. The disadvantage of this approach is that it cannot address those features of the 
existing process set out in the primary legislation and so, for example, keeps the 
current number of signatures required for a valid petition. 

7 

Page 33



Option two - changing the law (including doing so after 
amending guidance) 

21. This option proposes:  

• changing the threshold for a petition for a community governance review; 

• limiting the scope for the local authority’s consideration of the issues in a 
community governance review; and  

• shortening the timetable for the community governance review, and linking the 
timetable to the electoral cycle more clearly 

Petition threshold 

22. The number of signatures a petition needs in order to trigger a community 
governance review could be halved, as follows: For electorates of below 500, 25 per 
cent; 125 signatures for electorates between 500 and 2,500; and 5 per cent for 
electorates above 2,500. 

23. The aim in setting these limits is to ensure that the process is accessible to 
campaigners, enabling genuine campaigns with popular support to lead to a 
community governance review which will then take into account broader community 
views. Balance also needs to be had to ensure that the threshold is not lowered so 
far that reviews could be triggered without real support.  

Scope of review 

24. Under this option, authorities would still be able to carry out a governance review 
covering a wider area than that originally covered by the petition, but reviews would 
need to consider each proposed parish council area separately, as each 
neighbourhood has distinct needs and features. It would not be open to an authority 
to use the desirability of a different governance arrangement in one area as a reason 
to reject a proposal for a parish council in another.  

25. The review would operate from the presumption that a parish council would be 
effective and convenient, unless consultees presented evidence to the contrary, as 
there is no shortage of evidence to show that town and parish councils can be so. 
Those living in the area to be served by the proposed council should be the ones to 
decide about the effectiveness and convenience of the new parish council. 

Timescale 

26. This option would reduce the maximum time period for community governance 
reviews to six months. This allows for the consultation required in the process. 
Similarly, the legislation could be amended to set a maximum time period for setting 
terms of reference once a valid petition had been received - for example, three 
months. Alternatively, a single limit of nine or twelve months for the whole process, 
from receipt of petition (rather than from agreement of terms of reference) may be a 
simpler, more realistic option. 

8 

Page 34



Links to electoral timetables  

27. As with the proposal on electoral timetable under option one, the opportunity to 
present a petition for the creation of a parish council can be linked to each cycle of 
the electoral timetable. A change to the legislation could require local authorities to 
publish timescales linked to the electoral cycle, within which petitions should be 
ideally submitted, so that if the local authority decides in favour, the establishment of 
the council itself is not delayed by a long wait for the next election. This would not 
prevent out of cycle petitions from being submitted, but would enable local 
authorities and campaigners to prepare their resources at a sensible time. 

Implementation 

28. Implementation of this option would involve using a Legislative Reform Order to 
amend primary legislation. It could be done following changes to the statutory 
guidance. It would make changes to petition arrangements, require authorities to 
adopt different timescales for governance reviews and make changes to the scope of 
those reviews, all of which is set out in existing legislation. It would place an 
obligation on authorities to publish schedules within which they will consider petitions 
for new parish councils. These changes to the process would require a new burdens 
assessment to be carried out. 

Advantages and disadvantages 

29. The advantages of the proposals described in this option are that they would 
address a wide range of the problems with the current process, including lowering 
the thresholds for a valid petition, whilst still requiring a petition to establish an initial 
degree of community support. It addresses an issue of engagement at the initial 
petition stage whilst maintaining the safeguards contained within the carrying out of 
the community governance reviews in taking into account the views of the broader 
community. 

30. The disadvantage of this option is that lowering the threshold for a petition triggering 
a community governance review runs the risk that petitions which do not have 
sufficient community backing will be considered, potentially wasting resources or 
leading to the creation of a council which is not wanted by the local community. This 
risk is a concern and therefore views as to the scale of that risk, and the potential 
value or not of a lowering of the threshold, would be welcomed. 

9 

Page 35



Option three - making it easier for neighbourhood 
forums to start the process for creating a new parish 
council 

31. This option proposes that a neighbourhood forum could submit an application to 
trigger a community governance review, rather than having to submit a petition with 
the required number of signatures. For areas without a designated neighbourhood 
forum the existing process of a petition would remain. 

32. The neighbourhood planning powers in the Localism Act allow town and parish 
councils to develop neighbourhood plans for their local areas, which, when accepted 
by the local authority and agreed by the local population in a referendum, become 
part of the planning framework. In areas where there is not a town or parish council, 
neighbourhood planning can be carried out by anyone who wants to set up or join a 
group which is designated as a ‘neighbourhood forum’ by the local authority. The 
minimum requirements are that neighbourhood forums must be open to those living 
and working in the neighbourhood area, have the purpose of promoting or improving 
the well-being of the area, have a written constitution and have at least 21 members.   

33. There are a number of reasons why a neighbourhood forum should be involved in 
the process of creating a new parish council. Firstly, a designated neighbourhood 
forum has an open membership of people with a genuine interest in the local 
community and a focus on improving local well-being. Secondly, the neighbourhood 
planning process should generate community interest and engagement in the idea of 
shaping and improving the neighbourhood. That may mean that it can also be a 
good starting point for considering the creation of a town or parish council. Thirdly, 
when that forum has had a neighbourhood plan agreed at a referendum, it has 
shown that it has community support in developing proposals for the future of the 
neighbourhood. It may therefore be appropriate to allow it to start the process of 
creating a parish council more easily than the current petition process allows.  

How would it work?  

34. This option would remove the requirement for a designated neighbourhood forum 
which has had a neighbourhood plan passed at referendum to submit a petition if it 
wanted to trigger a community governance review. Instead, it would just submit an 
application to the local authority in the manner currently prescribed for a petition - 
setting out the area to be covered by the new parish council. This would trigger a 
community governance review in the same way as a valid petition. 

35. The proposal would need to go through all the subsequent steps of a community 
governance review by the local authority, including consultation, so the whole 
community would still have a voice in the process. The local authority would, as now, 
examine and decide on the proposal in the community governance review.  

36. Members of a neighbourhood forum would not have an automatic right to sit on the 
new parish council if it were to be created. They would need to stand for election just 
as other candidates would. However, should the local authority decide to create a 

10 

Page 36



parish council, the forum members could play a role in any ‘shadow council’ set up in 
advance of the first elections to the new parish council.  

Using guidance 

37. Guidance could be used to support forums which have not yet got to the referendum 
stage but have already identified a local desire to seek the creation of a new parish 
council. The guidance could suggest that where a neighbourhood forum wanted to 
develop the proposal for a parish council before its neighbourhood plan had been 
approved by a referendum, it could approach the local authority to raise the issue. 
The local authority and the forum could work together to set out a proposal to the 
community. The neighbourhood planning process will include a range of 
opportunities to engage with the local community. The concept of a new parish 
council could be explored with the local community alongside discussions on 
neighbourhood planning. This would build on the community interest generated 
through neighbourhood planning to gather evidence on the appetite for a new parish 
council, to inform any future community governance review. 

Implementation 

38. Implementation of the right to submit an application for creation of a council rather 
than prepare a petition would require amending primary legislation with a Legislative 
Reform Order, as it would change the process set out in the existing primary 
legislation. These changes would require a new burdens assessment to be carried 
out. 

Advantages and disadvantages 

39. The advantages of this option are that a neighbourhood forum would be able to build 
on the interest in neighbourhood issues which may be built up through the 
neighbourhood planning process much more easily than at present; and where a 
neighbourhood forum initiates the process, the neighbourhood area is already 
defined (rather than requiring a separate process to agree what constitutes the 
neighbourhood to be covered by the proposed parish council). 

40. The disadvantage of this option is that in removing the requirement for a petition 
showing strong community backing, a campaign may be developed without sufficient 
popular support, as for option two. 

 

Have we identified appropriate solutions, taking into account the balance 
between making it easier to set up new councils and the risks of making the 
process too easy? What other solutions are there? 

Which is/are the best approach/approaches to making it easier to set up new 
town and parish councils?

11 

Page 37



Making the change - a call for evidence 
41. Our starting point is that the decision to create a new parish council should remain 

with the local authority as the existing legislation requires. And, as set out above, the 
Government is also clear that where local people express popular support for the 
creation of a parish council, the local authority should work with the community to 
achieve that. 

42. This discussion paper is intended to collect evidence about the costs and benefits of 
town and parish councils as well as responses to the proposals outlined above.  The 
information collected will be used to inform how proposals are implemented, and 
inform any new burdens assessment required to accompany the changes. 

43. We are particularly interested to hear from recently formed town and parish councils 
and individuals and groups considering campaigning for the creation of town or 
parish councils, and from the local authorities in those areas. 

44. We are keen to improve our evidence base on the process of forming new town or 
parish councils, in particular relating to the period since 2008 during which the 
Secretary of State has not had a role in the process. We want to learn from available 
good practice about how the process can work best.  

45. We also want to hear practical suggestions from those engaged in the process as to 
how else it might be improved. 

46. Decisions on what options to pursue in improving the current process will be based 
on the evidence and views gathered in the consultation. In particular, options to 
amend the existing primary legislation through a Legislative Reform Order require 
clear evidence of the need for and costs and benefits of this change that would 
justify such an approach (showing that the benefits outweighed the costs) before 
being taken forward. 

Assessing the impacts 
47. In general, our policy intention for any changes to the primary legislation through a 

Legislative Reform Order - placing requirements on local authorities when 
considering campaigns for the creation of new town and parish councils - would be 
that those processes be no more expensive than the current system. Activity such as 
carrying out a governance review, as set out under the current system as well as 
following any changes, carries a cost. The intention in our proposals is to simplify 
and speed up the process. But any changes to the existing process (for example, 
changes to the timescale) will require a new burdens assessment.  

48. One benefit of a town or parish council will be greater local engagement in service 
design and delivery - that a community is getting services which fit more closely with 
what it wants and needs. There are many examples, for instance in the 2010 
National Association of Local Councils (NALC) report ‘Localism in Practice’.    

49. However, quantifying precisely the potential financial benefits to be gained from a 
town or parish council is difficult, because of the wide range of activities they 

12 

Page 38



undertake - many of them discretionary and not having easily available comparators 
- and because not all the benefits can be monetised.  

50. We therefore want to hear evidence on the costs and benefits of new town and 
parish councils as part of the consultation process. 

 

This paper was published on 31 October 2012. We welcome your views by  
9 January 2013. 

We welcome comments from anyone with an interest in this subject. In particular, we 
are interested to hear from those involved in campaigns to create new town and 
parish councils, existing town and parish councils and Associations of Local 
Councils, national organisations supporting town and parish councils, local 
authorities and national organisations supporting them. 

Please send your views to: 

Making it easier to set up new town and parish councils 
Big Society and Community Rights Division 
Department for Communities and Local Government 
5/B5 
Eland House 
Bressenden Place 
London SW1E 5DU 

Or by email to:  

decentralisation@communities.gsi.gov.uk  

13 

Page 39

mailto:decentralisation@communities.gsi.gov.uk


Annex A: The current process for setting 
up a new parish council 

The process begins either with the local authority choosing to carry out a review, or 
with a local community which wants a new parish council petitioning the local 
authority to create a new parish council. As well as setting out that it proposes the 
creation of a new parish council it must propose the boundaries for the new parish. If 
the local authority receives a valid petition with sufficient signatures, it must carry out 
a community governance review. The number of signatures required is: 

• 50 per cent of the electors for neighbourhood areas with fewer than 500 electors;  

• 250 electors for areas with between 500 and 2,500 electors; or  

• 10 per cent of the electors for areas with over 2,500 electors.  

Having set the terms of reference for the review, the council must carry it out within 
12 months. 

The local authority can decide what geographical area the review will cover. It might, 
for example, choose to take the opportunity receiving a petition offers to carry out a 
single, efficient review addressing governance arrangements for the whole local 
authority area. Or it might review the arrangements in the area that has petitioned.  

As part of the community governance review, the local authority will consult the local 
community about the creation of the proposed parish council. 

If at the conclusion of a community governance review the local authority decides to 
create a new parish council, this is done with a reorganisation order. However, the 
new parish council will not be formally constituted until elections for councillors are 
held. This can be at the same time as the next local authority elections, or (if that 
would mean a long delay) the local authority can choose to hold earlier elections for 
the parish, before it falls into line with the normal electoral cycle for the local authority 
area at the next local authority elections. 

In the period after the decision to create a new parish council but before the first 
elections to it, the local authority may set up a ‘shadow council’ for the parish. This is 
a body created to assist with the transition to the full council. It can develop standing 
orders for the council and make early plans. It is only there as a caretaker and the 
decisions it makes are not binding on the new parish council when it is elected. 

14 

Page 40



The current process for setting up a new parish council 

 

Community submits valid petition Local authority independently 
decides to initiate community 
governance review 

Local authority initiates community governance review; agrees terms of reference (no 
time limit; however, likely to take a matter of months to confirm petition validity and 
agree ToRs to fit council meeting schedule 

Community governance review  (max 12 months from start) 

Includes consultation process 

Council agrees 
review 
recommend-
ation 

Review 
recommends 
creation of 
council 

Council rejects 
review 
recommend-
ation 

Review does not 
recommend 
creation of council 

Council agrees 
review 
recommend-
ation 

Council rejects 
review 
recommend-
ation 

Community 
seeks judicial 
review of 
decision 

Process 
complete - no 
council created 

Process complete 

Orders drawn up for 
creation of council 

Shadow council can be 
established in advance of 
first elections 

First elections; council 
established 

Timescale 

2-4 months 
(estimate) 

Timescale 

12 months 
(maximum) 

Judicial review 

Timescale 

Subject to 
electoral 
timetable 

Timescale 

indeter-
minate 

15 

Page 41



Annex B: Parish councils - Key facts 

• There are around nine and a half thousand town and parish councils in England 

• Town and parish councils cover approximately ninety per cent of the area of 
England, but only approximately thirty-seven per cent of the population.  

• They are mostly found in shire areas (in rural locations and market town) and less 
in urban areas. (For example, there is currently only one parish council in 
Birmingham; and one has been agreed within London, though it has not yet come 
into existence.)1 

• Where a town or parish council does not exist one can be created if the local 
authority decides to do so through a ‘community governance review’, started by a 
petition of local people. 

• Town and parish councils are formally elected by local people and therefore have 
a democratic mandate when negotiating with and influencing other decision 
making bodies. 

• The range of services provided by parish councils varies widely, but typically 
includes leisure facilities, cultural activities and community grants. They can take 
on some local services from the local authority, by agreement with it; or deliver 
them as a contractor (for example following exercise of the Community Right to 
Challenge in the Localism Act 2011). 

• In future, in areas charging Community Infrastructure Levy, local planning 
authorities will be required to pass a proportion of Community Infrastructure Levy 
money raised from development in the area directly to town and parish councils 
where the development is situated. They will be able to spend the funds on the 
infrastructure that they want or on the ongoing costs of providing infrastructure. 
(In areas without a local council the local planning authority will retain the funds 
and will engage with their communities in determining how to spend the receipts). 

 

                                                            

1 ONS boundary data, May 2010 

16 

Page 42



 

 
 

BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE 13 February 2013 
 
Present: Councillors Mike Gilbert(Chairman), Stephen Woodliffe (Vice-Chairman), Alison 
Austin, Mark Baker, Paul Gleeson, Paul Goodale, Yvonne Gunter, Paul Kenny, Paul 
Mould, Derek Richmond, Carol Taylor and Mary Wright 
 
In attendance: Councillor Peter Bedford (for Minute 37) 
 
Officers: Chief Executive, Strategic Director & Deputy Chief Executive, Partnerships and 
Sustainability Manager, Local Communities Development Officer and Senior Democratic 
Services Officer. 
 
Guest: Mandy Exley, Community Development Officer, Lincolnshire Community and 
Voluntary Service (for Minute 38) 
 
35 MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 9 January 2013 were agreed as a correct record and 
signed by the Chairman. 
 
36 APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors  David Owens and Dr Gurdip Samra 
 
37 FORMATION OF A TOWN COUNCIL 

 
The Committee received a report by the Chief Executive, which outlined out the process 
for forming a town council, as requested by a Committee Member.   
 
The Chief Executive reported that between 170-180 new town and parish councils had 
been created since the process was introduced and the present Government was keen to 
encourage more.  Various issues were involved, but the initial requirement was to engage 
the interest of residents.  Then the Council would undertake a Community Governance 
Review, the outcome of which was final with no right of appeal.   
 
However, the current process was complicated and drawn out.  The Department of 
Communities and Local Government was currently consulting on a simple system.  New 
regulations would be introduced, probably in March 2013.  It was expected that the local 
authority would still need to undertake a Community Governance Review and that 10% of 
residents in the area concerned would still need to sign a petition to request one.  The 
main change was expected to be that the process would take six months instead of twelve.  
If BTAC decided to go ahead with this process, it would have to engage its own advisors, 
as the Chief Executive would be acting for the Borough Council in undertaking the review.   
 
Members discussed various issues: the advantages and disadvantages of forming a town 
council; whether the public would want another layer of governance; whether a referendum 
could be held to assess the views of all members of the public, not just the 10% required 
to sign a petition; and what the implications would be for the Borough Council.   
 

Page 43



 

 
 

In response, the Chief Executive said the benefits would include increased self-
determination.  BTAC had special area expense powers and a precept; a town council 
would be similar, but would run its own services in its own way and employ its own 
contractors.  It would have its own clerk and the head of the town council would have a 
civic role.  It would make its own policy decisions; the Borough Council’s power and 
influence would be diluted.  The rates charged for the area would be for the new town 
council to set and would be governed by current governance constraints.   
 
The disadvantages were that a Community Governance Review would involve a significant 
amount of work and there would be a cost.  Also, it would be difficult to explain the issues 
involved to the public to enable people to make an informed decision on the matter.  A 
referendum or an e-referendum could be held, but it would be hard to interest the public.   
 
In conclusion, the Chief Executive advised the Committee that as the formation of a town 
council would make matters more complicated for the Borough Council, BTAC would have 
to voice very positive views for it to agree to go ahead.  On the introduction of a town 
council, BTAC would cease to exist.  The town council would start from scratch and could 
choose its powers; it would not automatically assume the same responsibilities.   
 
Members’ views varied.  There was a view that the costs would be prohibitive, with extra 
rates to cover increased overheads when one layer of governance would do.  Another 
view was that it might still be worth reviewing the possibility.   
 
Speaking from personal experience, a Member described the role of town councillor as 
more effective and proactive than that of district councillor.  A town council provided 
democracy at a more local level, which was the Government’s aim.  A town council could 
sell land, provide facilities and have open question time sessions for the public.  In the 
1974 reorganisation, the Boston town area would have been half the borough area, the 
likely reason a town council had not been formed, but the town should have its own town 
council now.  Some areas had Placecheck and some did not; forming a town council would 
address this.  In addition, Skirbeck should have its own parish council, as the area had 
different needs and the residents seemed in favour of it.  However, it was not advisable to 
pursue the matter at present due to imminent changes in the process.   
 
Another view was that forming a town council would give people in the town fair and equal 
democracy to those in rural areas of the borough, as they were disadvantaged at present.  
The recent issue of the Committee taking on the maintenance of Garfit’s Lane playing field 
exemplified this.  Following reorganisation in 2015, the parishes would have more seats, 
and, in effect, would set BTAC’s budget, which was a concern, as decisions would be 
made by people who did not live in the town.  If a referendum was held and town residents 
were asked whether they wanted to pay one charge or two they would vote for one.  Self-
determination was needed.  BTAC was already paying for officers and accommodation.  At 
the right time, a campaign would be undertaken for a parish council for Skirbeck and a 
town council for the town, to give people a voice.     
 
However, another view was that areas with town councils seemed to be in district council 
areas, which were of significant size, with presumably greater ability to generate funds, 
and the Boston town area was still probably half the borough area.   
 

Page 44



 

 
 

In response to a question, the Chief Executive said he did not know whether a town of 
similar size to Boston had formed a town council; however, it was usually larger areas with 
discrete townships, such as East Lindsey.  He then suggested that he report back to the 
Committee with the new regulations, adding that the Council could carry out a Community 
Governance Review that looked at all of the parish council structure.  However, the 
outcomes would have to be considered; a recent review had looked at logical boundaries.   
 
The Chairman referred to the limitations on BTAC compared with the Council and asked if 
the Committee’s constitution could be amended so it had more parish council-like powers.  
The Chief Executive agreed to review it for a future meeting.   
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the Chief Executive reports back to a future meeting of 
the Committee on: 
 
1. The new regulations for forming town councils in relation 

to the future of BTAC as an Area Committee or as a 
stand-alone town council; 
 

2. BTAC’s constitution and whether the Committee can 
assume more powers. 

  
 
Richard Harbord  

 
38 THE PLACECHECK PROJECT SINCE JANUARY 2012 

 
The Local Communities Development Officer presented an update on the Placecheck 
Project by the Local Communities Development Officer, which had been requested by the 
Committee.   
 
The report detailed outcomes achieved since the submission of the End of Project Report 
in January 2012.  Since the beginning of the Placecheck over 30 projects had been 
developed, funded and completed, as detailed in an appendix to the report.  The 
conclusions of the update were that communities were now able to identify local needs 
and take action in response to them; people had increased their skills and confidence so 
that they could continue to identify and respond to need in the future; and people had 
made a difference to their communities by prioritising needs and working together. 
 
In response to a question, it was reported that there was £1,000 in reserve for the Boston 
Youth Council mural project because a basket ball hoop and back board were to be 
provided, but there had been issues with respect to the surfacing.  As the project did not 
go ahead, the money had been ring-fenced in case there was a need for surfacing.  The 
money was now amalgamated in one pot. 
 
During Members’ debate, officers were thanked for the way they had taken Placecheck 
forward as projects were successful in all areas where they had been established.  There 
had been nothing in those areas beforehand; now committees had been set up and 
projects had continued.  It was a credit to the officers’ hard work.   
 

Page 45



 

 
 

It was remarked that Placecheck had certainly made a difference to the town centre and 
that residents were keen to get involved and were doing excellent work.  However, it was 
described as unfortunate that there were some areas without Placecheck and officers 
were urged to work towards expanding it to develop new projects.   
 
In response, it was reported that anyone in any street or area could set up a Placecheck 
project.  They did not need a large pot of money; they just needed to work with service 
providers.  Officers were keen to support people to get new projects established and had 
advised a great number of people about this.  They had developed a basic toolkit, which 
could be offered out to people and officers could talk them through it.  If there was an area 
Members knew might benefit from a Placecheck project, they should contact the officers.    
 
The Chairman reminded the meeting that BTAC had also set aside £4,500 to support 
Placecheck and suggested a press release be issued to encourage people to apply for it.   
 
In response to questions, it was reported that the Placecheck executive had its own terms 
of reference and met on an ad hoc basis regarding wider concerns.  There had been a 
recent meeting regarding ‘Big Local’, which would help with community consultation and 
planning.  Members of BTAC had been invited to meet with Ivan Annibal about Big Local 
on a date to be confirmed.  The Big Local launch would be an all day event on 6th March, 
manned by volunteers, outside the community rooms, in the market place and in the main 
foyer of Asda.  There was to be a series of public meetings as follows: 
 
12th March 10 – 12 Fenside Community Centre 
  7 – 9 pm Boston College (to be confirmed)  
14th March 10 – 12 Blenkin Memorial Hall 
  7 – 9 pm Pilgrim Lounge, York Street 
 

Action:  
Ask the Marketing and Communications Manager to issue a 
press release to encourage take-up of the ring-fenced BTAC 
Community Awards funding for new and existing Placecheck 
projects.   

  
Maddy Eyre 

 
39 BOSTON IN BLOOM CAMPAIGN 2013 

 
The Partnerships and Sustainability Manager presented a report, requested by Committee 
Members, which provided an update on Boston in Bloom 2013. 
 
Boston in Bloom was designed to enhance the image and reputation of the town, 
encourage more visitors and shoppers, and promote civic pride.  The plans for 2013 would 
build on the success achieved in 2012 when, despite a late start, Boston had been 
awarded silver in the Large Towns category of the East Midlands region.  A number of the 
Council’s contributing partners had also received awards.  The Committee was asked to 
consider offering support for Boston in Bloom 2013 to help enhance the town and foster 
public and business engagement in the campaign. 
 
The report outlined the benefits associated with participation in the campaign, which 
provided a coherent framework for greening Boston with external independent 

Page 46



 

 
 

assessment.  The project’s steering group had identified a number of enhancements, 
which were set out in the report, including a facelift of Custom House Quay and enhanced 
planting displays.  There were also ongoing projects such as bulb-planting, community 
orchards and growing spaces.  An increasing number of organisations and commercial 
sponsors were supporting Boston in Bloom, such as Lincolnshire County Council, the 
Environment Agency, Asda, B&Q, Homebase and Bell Brothers.  Substantial discounts 
and free plants had been received.  Any support that BTAC might feel appropriate for the 
2013 campaign would be welcomed.   
 
During debate, Members voiced support for the Boston in Bloom campaign.  There was a 
real need to enhance the town and, when areas were clean and well-kept, people did not 
abuse them.  The public appreciated Boston in Bloom, it raised morale.  BTAC should 
support it as much as possible and it should be properly endorsed.  Preferably, the 
Committee should receive costings.  It was suggested that efforts be made to involve the 
migrant community; the greater the number of people involved, the more ownership there 
would be and improvements would be sustained.   
 
It was remarked that Boston’s water ways could be improved and the Environment Agency 
should be approached about this.  In response, it was reported that the Environment 
Agency had been asked to support the enhancement of Custom House Quay, though 
there would be other ways in which it could help.   
 
A Member voiced concern that money was being spent purely on the parts of the town that 
were along the route of the Boston in Bloom judges and that other parts of the town were 
neglected.  Areas that the Council used to look after were now unkempt, for example, the 
garden on the corner of Carlton Road and Sleaford Road, and the garden area in front of 
Fossitt and Thorne, which the Council maintained, but weeds had now replaced roses.   
 
The portfolio holder reported that it was hoped to increase the scope of the areas included 
in Boston in Bloom each year, but it depended on funding.  Also, work was ongoing with 
Fen Road to clean up the town, but this took time.   
 
The Partnerships and Sustainability Manager reported that the Council was working 
closely with Boston Greenscapers and Thistles Nursery.  Increased direct public 
involvement would be welcomed.  Numbers were building up with people taking part in 
litter picks etc, but further involvement needed to be encouraged.  However, with respect 
to the extent of the areas covered, the Council had limited capacity.  Most of the work was 
done by volunteers, through community sponsorship and by the Council’s parks section.   
 
It was suggested thought be given to other ways to involve the public, for example, the 
B&Q discount could be used to encourage people to buy hanging baskets in this year’s 
theme of purple and gold.  Bulb planting was also endorsed, as bulbs flourished for years. 
 
It was generally agreed that the approaches into town, such as along Spalding Road, were 
in a very bad state, giving a poor impression to people entering the town.  It was 
suggested that officers approach the County Council about funding improvements to 
Boston’s approaches and that Boston in Bloom be extended to these areas. Officers could 
also speak to local farmers.  Network Rail had areas in a similar condition, though it was 
reported that Fen Road had contacted the company about tidying them up.   
 

Page 47



 

 
 

The portfolio holder then requested a contribution from BTAC of £2,000 to buy planters.  
Some Members felt there should be a report first, giving a costing for the planters and 
details of locations.  However, it was proposed that the contribution be made at once, so 
that the planting could get underway.   
 

RESOLVED: That a contribution of £2,000 be made from 
BTAC’s reserves for planters for Boston in Bloom 2013. 

 Ian Farmer 

 
40 INGELOW AVENUE PLAYING FIELD 

 
The Committee considered a report by the Strategic Director & Deputy Chief Executive, 
requested by Members of the Committee, on options for developing the Ingelow Avenue 
playing field site.  It was confirmed that BTAC did not maintain this site.   
 
The report detailed three options considered to be the best options for the public.  The 
Strategic Director & Deputy Chief Executive advised the Committee that option 3 was the 
preferred option.  The site was challenging, but had planning and development potential.  
However, design and flood risk factors were a barrier.  The adjacent Julian’s site had been 
the subject of a planning application that had been refused on flood risk grounds and a 
subsequent appeal had been withdrawn; therefore, there were unchallenged Environment 
Agency objections to development.    
 
During debate, it was remarked that the planning application was some time agao and 
there could be resolutions to the flood risk issues; flood risk alone should not stand in the 
way.  Residents had felt let down by the Council and planners when the application had 
been refused.  The Council should be supportive of the developer and work with them to 
ensure the site was properly developed.  The Environment Agency claimed the site was 
dangerous, yet there were existing houses there and the agency took no action.  Perhaps 
agency officers should be invited to a Committee meeting to explain this or the Committee 
could ask them to improve facilities.  The current condition of the site meant it was a 
wasted space for everyone.   
 
It was generally agreed that option 3 appeared to be the only viable way to develop the 
site and should be investigated.  However, it was remarked that perhaps there should not 
be development all the way around.   
 
It was further suggested that the development should incorporate a resolution to the 
footpath that had been the source of significant problems for residents.  It might not be 
possible to stop up the footpath, as the County Council and the Ramblers’ Association 
would want it kept open; however, this could still be pursued.  Other suggestions were to 
provide street lights in the area to act as a deterrent to anti-social behaviour and attach a 
Section 106 obligation to planning permission for security fencing.  In response, it was 
reported that efforts should be made to try to resolve the problems, though it could not be 
guaranteed. 
 
It was remarked that the site was a very large open space, larger than was needed and 
there was a shortage of affordable housing in the borough.  The Council should work 
towards developing the site in partnership.  The Julian site and the play area had been 

Page 48



 

 
 

problematic and had needed attention for years and development would resolve this.  If 
the site was developed, residents would get a new play area and equipment. 
 

RESOLVED: that it be recommended to Council that 
development of part of the Ingelow Avenue site be 
progressed, preferably in partnership with another 
organisation.   

 Phil Drury 
 

 
41 AGENDA ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
It was suggested that that County Council officers be invited to attend a future meeting to 
explain what their responsibilities were with respect to the approaches to the town and the 
town centre area, as more could be done to improve these areas (Minute 39 refers).   
 
The ward Member felt that a there should be a report on the Garfit’s Lane site; it was an 
excellent resource that served a wide area that had a good deal of development, but few 
facilities.  The Council had not realised the site’s potential.  It was preferable that BTAC 
now maintained the site; there was more chance of it being improved with the support of 
local Members.  A business case should be drafted with details of the possibilities for the 
land.  It was felt it should certainly generate more than £300 income per year.  The 
building that housed the changing rooms and the play area were in a poor condition.   
 
The matter of street sweeping in the town centre was raised.  Although to be reported to 
the Environment and Performance Committee in March, it was a matter for town Members.  
Issues had to be raised, such as sweeping roads with a road sweeper when cars were 
parked down both sides of roads, as was the case with most town centre streets.   
 
The following were agreed as future agenda items: 

 Street sweeping in the town centre 

 Garfit’s Lane Site – future options  

 Lincolnshire County Council – LCC officers to explain responsibilities 
 
42 URGENT ITEM – REQUEST FOR PRE-APPLICATION COMMENTS 
 
The Chairman explained that, after the agenda was published, a request had been 
received for feedback on a development proposal on a site located on land off Sir Isaac 
Newton Drive, Wyberton.   A sketch layout had been provided, showing draft proposals for 
approximately 29 dwellings, of which 30% were required to be affordable, though the 
numbers could alter as the scheme developed.  Open space was proposed to the A16 side 
of the site, together with acoustic bunding.  The details had been e-mailed to Members 
and hard copies were circulated at the meeting.  The proposal could be considered if the 
Committee wished to regard it as an urgent item.   
 
The Chairman also advised the Committee that, contrary to previous advice, Members 
who were also Members of the Planning Committee were perfectly at liberty to take part 
and vote on this matter if they wished to do so, due to changes brought about by the 
Localism Act regarding predetermination.  Guidance was quoted to the effect “A dual-
hatted Member can speak and vote on an issue at parish council level and still speak and 
vote at district level, so long as they keep an open mind…for transparency, it is advisable 

Page 49



 

 
 

to make a statement at the meeting at which the decision on that issue is being made.”  
Therefore, if the proposal went forward to the Planning Committee as an application, those 
Members could still fully participate in its consideration, but should declare their 
consideration of the proposal at BTAC. 
 

RESOLVED: That the item be considered as a matter of urgency, by reason of 
special circumstances.   

 
The Strategic Director & Deputy Chief Executive explained that the developer was seeking 
pre-application advice as part of community consultation, as required under the Localism 
Act.  The matter was urgent as the local planning authority had advised the developer it 
would be helpful to demonstrate engagement with the local community.  In this way, any 
issues would be highlighted and brought up during the developer’s pre-application 
discussions with the Planning Officers.  The details of the development were not relevant 
to the Committee’s consideration; only the principle of development.   
 
The ward Member listed several points she expected would be raised by local residents: 
the site was rumoured to be contaminated land; it was close to a school that was at 
capacity; there was a lot of traffic and parking issues on the road; and there was no 
footpath at the bottom section of Tytton Lane East.  However, this was a good 
development site and it was inevitable that it would be developed.   
 
Members commented that the development was expected.  There was support for the 
proposal and no objections.  It was remarked that there should be sufficient play space 
and that contributions for the local school would be expected, though the ward Member 
made it clear that it would not be possible to extend the school due to space restrictions.   
 
The only query concerned the location of the drain, which appeared to be right through the 
middle of the site.  However, it was reported that there was an open water course and the 
footpath was approximately where the drain was and Members recognised that the internal 
drainage board would deal with this.   
 

RESOLVED: That, in response to consultation, the 
Committee is in favour of the development of the land off Sir 
Isaac Newton Drive, Wyberton going ahead.   

 Phil Drury 
 

 
 

(The meeting finished at 8.20 p.m.) 

Page 50



 

 

 

 
 

REPORT TO: BTAC 

DATE: 11 DECEMBER 2013 

SUBJECT: FORMATION OF A NEW TOWN COUNCIL 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR PETER BEDFORD 

REPORT AUTHOR: CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
This report is for information only and briefly sets out the process for the 
formation of a Town Council. 
 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Committee discuss and note the information within the report. 
 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The report was requested by the Committee. 
 
 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
Not to discuss the item. 
 
 

 
REPORT 
 
In a report to this Committee on 13 February 2013 I set out the then current 
procedure for the formation of a new Parish Council which could then be 
designated a Town or Community Council. 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 51



The Government have been anxious to make this procedure simpler to 
encourage more Parish Councils to be formed in line with the localism 
agenda. 
 
There was a consultation from October 2012 to 9 January 2013 and Central 
Government published a response to the consultation in September 2013. 
 
At Appendix A I show the flow chart showing the process as it was then in 
summary.  
 
The number of signatures required from the community in the petition to the 
local authority is:- 
 
50% of the electors for areas with fewer than 500 electors 
250 electors for areas with between 500 and 2500 electors 
10% of electors for areas of over 2500 electors 
 
On receipt of the petition the Local Authority would agree the terms of 
reference for the Community Governance Review. There was no time limit set 
for this. One the Terms of Reference were agreed the Authority would have to 
complete the review in a 12 month period. 
 
The community would be consulted as part of the Governance Review. 
 
If at the end of the review the Authority wishes to recommend a new Council 
this would be set up with a reorganisation order. 
 
The Council would come into being after elections either special elections or 
at the next electoral cycle depending on timing. 
 
Changes proposed following consultation:- 
 
These changes will be implemented by September 2014. 
 
The Government will change the law to limit the timescales to 12 months from 
receipt of the petition, rather than the agreement of the Terms Of Reference. 
They feel this will still give time for the complex Community Reviews to take 
place.  
 
They will legislate to reduce the number of signatures required on the petition. 
This will be 7.5% of electors in the area for all except very small communities. 
The Government will make it easier for Community Forums to transition to 
Parish Councils. These proposals are a little vague in the response and we 
will have to wait the legislation to see what it means. However in this case 
BTAC are already an established entity. Neighbourhood Forums will need 
neighbourhood plans approved at a referendum by electors before they can 
proceed to a petition stage. Neighbourhood Forms with their plan approved 
will then be able to initiate the Community Governance Review although the 
decisions on it will rest with the Local Authority. 
 

Page 52



There will be amendments to how the Community Review itself is carried out 
with particular reference to clearer definitions about “effectiveness” and 
“convenience”. 
 
There will be more guidance on elections following a successful review and 
an internal review of the decision. There will be no right of appeal.  
 
Detailed guidance on the evidence that would need to be supplied to the 
Community governance Review can be found at: 
 
www.communities.gov.uk/publications/localgovernment/guidancecommunitygovernance2010 

 
This runs to over 50 pages and indicates how complex the process is, if it is 
done properly.  
 
CONCLUSION 
 
I will be reporting to the Cabinet in due course about this, should it become 
necessary. The review will take 2 F.T.E to complete in 12 months and with 
consultation will cost around £70,000. The Borough Council will meet this 
sum.  
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None immediately and the report gives an estimate of costs should the matter 
proceed. 
 

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

 
 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
None. 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A Original DCLG Consultation Paper on 
BTAC - Chart 

Page 53

http://www.communities.gov.uk/publications/localgovernment/guidancecommunitygovernance2010


 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 
 

Guidance on community 
governance reviews 

www.gov.uk  

 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

Name of body Date 
 

BTAC 13th February 2013 

 
 

Page 54

http://www.gov.uk/


 

Appendix A 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE 11 DECEMBER 2013 
 
Present: Councillors Mike Gilbert (Chairman), Dr Gurdip Samra (Vice-Chairman),          
Alison Austin, Mark Baker, Paul Gleeson, Paul Goodale, Yvonne Gunter, Paul Kenny, 
Tiggs Keywood-Wainwright, Bob McAuley, Derek Richmond, Stephen Woodliffe and         
Mary Wright 
 
Portfolio holders: Councillors Peter Bedford and Raymond Singleton-McGuire 
 
Officers in attendance for the flood recovery update only: Strategic Director & Deputy Chief 
Executive, Head of Housing, Health & Community Services, Principal Community Safety 
Officer, Principal Officer (Street Scene) and Communications and Marketing Manager  
 
Other officers: Head of Financial Services, Senior Accountant and Senior Democratic 
Services Officer 
 
Observer: County Councillor Sue Ransome  
 
19 MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 2 October 2013 were agreed as a correct record and 
signed by the Chairman. 
 
20 APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors  Gloria Smith, Carol Taylor and 
David Owens and also from Richard Harbord, the Chief Executive. 
 
21 URGENT ITEM 

 
The Chairman suggested that an urgent item, submitted by Councillor Alison Austin, 
should be deferred until the next meeting.  The item, circulated to Members prior to the 
meeting, was:  
 
“In light of the damage suffered to St Botolph's Church as a result the flooding last week I 
would like to move a proposition that BTAC award an appropriate sum of money from 
BTAC reserves towards the clean up and restoration of the church. 
 
The contribution that this magnificent Church brings to Boston cannot be measured in 
monetary terms but it's upkeep is dependant mainly upon the generosity of those 
worshipping there. 
 
The finances of the church were already severely stretched at the end of the extensive 
period of internal restoration. 
 
I hope that all other members of BTAC will feel able to support this request and that this 
will be treated as a matter of urgency.” 
 
A Member advised the Committee that St. Botolph’s had reported being well insured and 
did not need this money; it would be better given to people in need.   

Page 57



 
Councillor Austin asked that the item be deferred until the next meeting in case St. 
Botolph’s found this was not the situation.  There was no objection to this. 
 
22 FLOOD RECOVERY UPDATE 
 
The Chairman said the floods, which had hit Boston on 5th December, had revealed the 
resilience and community spirit of the public and he thanked everyone involved in the 
response work. 
 
The Committee then received an update from the Strategic Director & Deputy Chief 
Executive, the Head of Housing, Health & Community Services, the Principal Community 
Safety Officer and the Principal Officer (Street Scene), who described the events as they 
unfolded and explained the current position with respect to post-flood recovery work.   
 
Members had several questions and views, including: 

 What was the cost to the authority? 

 What could Councillors do to help? 

 People should sign up to Floodline; could the Council do a mass drop of Floodline 
cards?  The Floodline cards had no information in other languages. 

 Why did the EA not let the water go up through Sluice Bridge and Black Sluice? 

 Prevention and warning measures had not been good enough. 

 The EA should publicise the fact that sandbags were being brought in for the breaches 
as the public were criticising them for bringing them in too late. 

 Many people in the town area could not afford insurance against flooding. 

 People were confused about how to deal with flooding and Members needed to have a 
thorough debate about the matter with the agencies involved.   

 The officers were commended for their tremendous efforts. 
 
The Chairman advised the Committee that the area’s response to the flood would be taken 
through the appropriate scrutiny committee in due course.   
 
The Strategic Director informed the Committee that discussions would be held with the 
Department for Communities and Local Government regarding a claim for funding to cover 
all costs incurred by the floods.  Boston was currently in the recovery stage and would 
remain so for a considerable time, but all items of expenditure were being monitored.  The 
County Council took the lead for the response to the floods and would hold a formal inquiry 
into the response as a matter of course.  The Council would participate in the inquiry, 
including all Members.  There would be an initial meeting on 20th December 2013, at which 
Members’ views would be fed back, and a de-briefing meeting would be held in January.   
 
23 FORMATION OF A NEW TOWN COUNCIL 
 
The Leader presented a report by the Chief Executive, concerning proposed changes to 
the procedure for the formation of a town council, which would be implemented by 
September 2014.   
 
The Chief Executive’s report of 13 February 2013 had set out the current procedure, which 
the Government wished to simplify to encourage more parish councils to be formed in line 

Page 58



with the localism agenda.  Consultation had run from October 2012 to January 2013.  The 
Government’s response was published in September 2013. 
 
Currently, the number of signatures required from a community in a petition to the local 
authority to begin the process was between 10-50% depending on the number of electors.  
On receipt of the petition the local authority would agree terms of reference for a 
Community Governance Review and there was no time limit set for this.  Once terms of 
reference were agreed the authority would have to complete the review in a 12-month 
period.   
 
Proposed changes included timescales being limited to 12 months from receipt of a 
petition and the number of signatures required on the petition reduced to 7.5% of electors 
for all but very small communities.  Legislation would clarify the proposals.   
 
If necessary, the Chief Executive would report to the Cabinet about the matter.  The review 
would require 2 full time employees to complete it in 12 months and, with consultation, 
would cost around £70,000, which the Council would meet.  
 
Some Members welcomed the changes as the way forward; BTAC needed to change and 
democracy would be improved in line with the Localism agenda and public engagement, 
particularly as, in 2015, more people outside the town would set the precept than those 
inside the area.  Others felt BTAC did not need to change at all and the public would not 
want to spend this amount of money on an extra layer of government.  Some then 
contended that there would not be additional cost; the same precept would be incurred 
and it would be the same layer of local government as the parish councils. 
 
The issue of Members not having to live within the town area to become Members of 
BTAC was compared to parishes.  It was clarified that people did not need to live within a 
parish to become a parish councillor; they had to live within 3 miles of the boundary or own 
land or a business within the parish.  It was remarked that Members living outside the town 
area still represented the people who lived there.   
 

The Chairman stated that the process was intended to benefit larger areas than Boston 
town; to introduce it here would result in the Council’s demise.   
 

RESOLVED: That the report be noted. RH 

 
24 REQUEST FOR DONATION FROM FOUR VILLAGES DAY CARE 

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
The Committee considered a request for a donation from the Four Villages Day Care 
Management Committee for its Day Care Centre with respect to Boston town clients. 
 
The Committee had made three donations in the past on the basis that there were no 
facilities in the town that the Boston town clients could attend.  The last request was for the 
year 2011/12 when the Committee had approved a donation based on the cost for each 
person from the town area to take part in activities to be held at the day centre that year.    
 

Page 59



The report detailing the request suggested that, should the Committee wish to make a 
further donation, it could be made on the same basis.  The proposed day centre activities, 
listed in the report, were estimated at £107 per client for the year, being a total of £535 for 
the 5 clients from the Boston town area. 
 
Peter Barnes from the Day Care Committee answered questions and explained that the 
clients were collected and taken to the centre on Wednesdays, given lunch and provided 
with entertainment.  The clients did pay a fee themselves, which varied, but was 
approximately £30 per day.  This was a significant amount, but the day at the centre 
represented respite care and it had increased substantially in recent years.  Bicker Parish 
Council and United Charities both contributed £100 per annum to the centre; they had no 
clients at the centre at present, but continued with the contributions.  Mr Barnes did not 
know of the new day centre based in the former Riddlington’s building.  The clients should 
have personalised budgets from the County Council to cover travel costs etc; however, the 
request for a donation was towards the estimated cost of entertainment.   
 
A Member commented that the Committee needed to ensure people had day care, to 
avoid isolation, and should make a donation to the centre.  However, the Chairman, as 
portfolio holder, was asked to consider the provision of day care in the town with relevant 
stakeholders, such as Age Concern, and with respect to the wellbeing fund and debate 
this matter in a year’s time to work to re-balance provision. 
 
The Head of Financial Services confirmed that BTAC’s uncommitted reserves at the end of 
the financial year were projected to be £35,000. 
 
It was proposed and seconded that a donation be made based on the estimated cost of 
entertainment, as suggested in the report. 
 
Mr Barnes thanked the Committee.   
 

RESOLVED: That a donation of £535 be made to the Four Villages 
Day Care Management Committee for the participation of 5 Boston 
town clients in day centre activities for one year. 

JC 

 

25 BTAC ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13 
 
The Committee considered a report, which attached an annual report of the Committee’s 
activities in 2012/13.   
 
The annual report had been drafted following a request for feedback from people and 
organisations who had received BTAC Community Grants, which appeared in Part 7 of the 
report.  It was suggested that the report be submitted to full Council in the same way as 
the scrutiny annual reports and also the first annual report produced for the Planning 
Committee and then published on the website.   
 
Members commented that it was important for committees to produce annual reports, to 
give an insight into their work, and the practice should continue.  Although BTAC did not 
require full Council approval, it was felt appropriate to submit the annual report in the same 
way as the annual reports of other committees.  It was further suggested that a précis be 

Page 60



considered to send out with council tax bills so that residents could see where some of the 
precept had been spent, though only if the cost was not prohibitive. 
 

RESOLVED: That the draft BTAC Annual Report for 2012/13 be 
submitted to full Council for approval. 

JC / 
Chairman 

 
26 BTAC FINANCIAL UPDATE REPORT 2013/14 AND BUDGET SETTING 2014/15-
 2018/19 
 
The Head of Financial Services and Senior Accountant presented the Committee’s 
financial update report for 2013/14 and budget setting information for 2014/15 – 2018/19. 
 
The forecast revenue outturn for 2013/14 projected an under spend of £2,000.  The 
reserves were healthy with a projected closing balance of approximately £35,000.  A 0% 
increase in council tax was recommended within the five-year budget setting plan.   
 
Appendix 1 showed the income and expenditure breakdown for 2013/14.  The main 
change was the three allotment sites transferring over to allotment associations, resulting 
in an estimated saving of just over £2,000 for the year.   
 
Appendix A provided the budget estimates for 2014/15 – 2018/19.  An amended copy of 
the detailed breakdown in Appendix A1 was circulated to the Committee, as the original 
did not show the figures for the reserves.  The reserves were forecast to reduce, despite 
the projected increases in council tax over the next five years.  A recommended reserve 
balance was £10,000; therefore, whilst BTAC currently had over £25,000 that could be 
used to fund projects, spending reductions would be needed in the future if any of this was 
to be considered available to spend. 
 
The budget estimates for the next five years were summarised as follows: 

 A proposed BTAC precept requirement for 2014/15 of £114,120 (compared to 
£116,200 for 2013/14), which included the provision of Council Tax Support Grant of 
£8,840 (compared to £11,780 for 2013/14).   

 The adjusted Tax base for 2014/15 was 8276.70 (compared to 8209.09 for 2013/14). 

 No increase in Council Tax band D was proposed in 2014/15; it would remain at £12.72 
as for 2013/14. 

 The cost per week for 2014/15 would remain £0.24, with most households paying less. 

 The levels of reserves at 31 March 2014 still remained relatively high at around 
£35,000, subject to any further decisions BTAC took with regard to future spending.  

 
With respect to the last point, assuming this spend continued and the Council Tax Support 
Grant reduced in line with RSG reductions, reserves would fall towards the assumed 
reasonable level to be held at £10,000 (forecast as £11,775 in 2018/19), if there were no 
adjustments to spending or council tax levels.  At this time, it was anticipated that future 
years’ budgets would be amended to balance income and expenditure annually.   
 
The proposed budget requirement and demand on Council Tax was illustrated in the 
report.  BTAC’s budget requirement for the year was £114,120 if there was a nil increase 
in Council Tax.  Appendix A1 showed that this was sufficient to cover expenditure for 

Page 61



2014/15.  The forward estimates allowed for a 2% increase in BTAC’s Council Tax charge 
per annum from 2016/17 onwards. 
 
During Members’ debate, there was satisfaction that BTAC had managed to pay for 
everything it had wished to and had still retained a reserve balance of £35,000.  However, 
it was felt that expenditure should be reviewed in line with BTAC’s priorities and the best 
use for the area’s residents, which might become clear following de-briefing meetings 
about the flood.   
 
In response to questions, it was reported that BTAC’s expenditure had also increased on 
utilities etc.  The projections were based on the current situation, which would change; 
BTAC would be urged to consider its deficits long before 2018/19.  The income previously 
received from the allotments had never been sufficient to cover the costs they incurred. 
 
Members discussed BTAC’s grounds maintenance recharge.  There was concern about 
the proportion of the total budget spent on this and it was felt a breakdown of spend would 
be useful.  The recharge for the Garfit’s Lane small recreation area was said to be £29,000 
because BTAC had no option but to buy grounds maintenance services from the Council; 
it could not contract out the service, unlike parish councils and charitable bodies.  It was 
asserted that if the service was run on BTAC’s behalf by a charitable body, it would not 
have to pay rates or for grass cutting, which was the arrangement in most parishes.  The 
Ward Member for Garfit’s Lane pointed out that she had requested its consideration as a 
future agenda item.   
 
Some Members expressed concern that figures were not provided for them to consider an 
alternative option for 2014/15.  For example, raising the precept by a small amount would 
avoid a large increase in later years and there were no restrictions on raising parish 
council precepts.  However, it was also felt that, as BTAC was carrying a significant 
amount of reserves currently, it could avoid an increase for 2014/15 and then look to 
preventing the reserves being depleted thereafter.   
 
It was reported that there could be restrictions on raising parish council precepts by 2015.  
As a guide, an increase of 1% on the BTAC precept would provide an additional £1,000. 
 

RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The 2013/14 projected outturn position at 30 November 2013 be 

noted; 
 

2. The level of BTAC’s Special Area Expense for 2014/15, and the 
Band D Council Tax of £12.72 be recommended to Cabinet and 
Council. 

PJ / DH 

 
27 AGENDA ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 

 
The Committee’s next meeting was scheduled to take place 26th February 2014.  There 
had been a request to change this date as it clashed with the inauguration of the new vicar 
at St. Botolph’s.  It was agreed to put the meeting back to 5th March 2014. 
 

Page 62



The following items were agreed as business for a future agenda: 

 Garfit’s Lane recreation area  

 Bench relocations 

 Unspent Neighbourhood Groups Grant 

 Transported Project 
 
It was suggested that the amount of BTAC Community Grant ring-fenced for 
neighbourhood groups be moved back because no further applications had come forward.  
There was a request for Transported Project to report back to the Committee on the 
scheme which saw large vehicles being decorated to travel around Europe; it was claimed 
that the public had not been consulted on this scheme and had, therefore, not been valid. 
 

Action: 
Make arrangements to postpone the date of the next meeting from 26th 
February to 5th March 2014. 

JC 

 
 
 

(The meeting finished at 8.10 p.m.) 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-governance-reviews-guidance 

Set up a town or parish council  

Local councils provide services to meet local needs and improve community wellbeing. 

 

What is it? 

Town and parish councils are the first level of local government. They provide communities with 

a democratic voice and a structure for taking community action. 

More than a third of people in England currently have a town or parish council, and the 

government is making it easier to set one up. 

How can I take part? 

To set up your own town or parish council, you’ll need to first give your local authority a 

petition containing the signatures of at least 7.5% of the local population. 

The petition must: 

 state exactly what it proposes: creating a parish or town council for a defined area 
 contain the signatures of at least 7.5% of local electors, based on the most recent electoral 

register - you’ll need more signatures for areas with fewer than 2,500 electors 

If the petition is valid, your local authority will carry out a ‘community governance review’ to 

see if a local council should be created. 

A neighbourhood forum that’s had a neighbourhood development plan passed at referendum can 

trigger a community governance review without needing a petition. 

You can get more information and advice about what you need to do from the National 

Association of Local Councils’ (NALC) Create a Council site or you can contact your County 

Page 65

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-governance-reviews-guidance
http://mycommunity.org.uk/programme/neighbourhood-planning/
http://www.nalc.gov.uk/our-work/create-a-council


Association of Local Councils. Each county has its own association. You can find contact details 

on the NALC website. For London, contact NALC direct. You may be able to get funding from 

them to help with this. 

You can also read about what happens after a petition is submitted in ‘Guidance on Community 

Governance Reviews’ which explains how local authorities should review the petitions. 

Related content  

 Community governance reviews: guidance 
 Understand how your council works 
 Local government structure and elections 
 Make a neighbourhood plan 
 Invest in local enterprises 

 
 

Page 66

http://www.nalc.gov.uk/about-county-associations
http://www.nalc.gov.uk/about-county-associations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-governance-reviews-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-governance-reviews-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-governance-reviews-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/understand-how-your-council-works
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/local-government-structure-and-elections
https://www.gov.uk/government/get-involved/take-part/make-a-neighbourhood-plan
https://www.gov.uk/government/get-involved/take-part/invest-in-local-enterprises


 

 

 

 
 

REPORT TO: BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 

DATE: 27 NOVEMBER 2019 

SUBJECT: BTAC 2019/20 FINANCIAL POSITION UPDATE 
AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2019 

REPORT AUTHOR: ACCOUNTANCY MANAGER  - REVENUE & 
SYSTEMS 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
This report provides an update to members on the BTAC financial position, 
showing the budget and projected outturn (full-year spend) for the 2019/20 
year, and the projected BTAC reserve at the year-end 31 March 2020. 
 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That BTAC members note the financial position for the year and the 
forecasted reserve amounts at the year-end. 
 
 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
This report shows the BTAC projected outturn for the 2019/20 year, both in 
terms of revenue expenditure for the year and the reserve sums held.  It helps 
inform members to enable them to ensure probity and to make decisions on 
future spending within the BTAC area.  
 
 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
None 
 

 
 
 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 67

Agenda Item 3



 
 
 
1 2019/20 PROJECTED FINANCIAL POSITION 
 
1.1 Appendix 1 provides the regular summary of the approved 2019/20 

BTAC budget.  
 
Once again a number of assumptions are required to assess the year 
end position – these include:- 

 The outturn spending for already agreed spending and income is 
broadly in line with the budget. 

 The remaining unallocated 2019/20 sum is approved and spent this 
year.  

 
 
1.2 Appendix 1 shows the budget and projected outturn position. 
 
 At the 7 months year to date, the projection for the full year is showing 

a small under-spend of £356. Expenditure variances have arisen on 
Open Spaces & Play Areas £169, Public Conveniences (£739), Events 
(£146), Administration (£155) and Town Centre Operatives £1,227. 
The Town Centre Operatives £1,227 underspend is due to the 
forecasted Salaries expenditure.  

                     
 
1.3     Appendix 1 shows the Funds Available for Unallocated Projects as at 

31 October 2019 to be £81,882. 
             
 
         
2 RESERVES 
 
2.1 The opening balance at 1 April 2019 held within BTAC reserves was 

£269,419 (comprising £70,000 as the minimum to be held to allow for 
contingencies - as approved in the budget setting report - plus 
£199,419 for projects as listed in the Appendix). The forecasted closing 
balance on BTAC’s reserve monies is £103,178 at 31 March 2020. 

 
 
2.2  Section 151 Officer 
 

Councils are required to ensure that public money is administered 
appropriately. Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires 
councils to make arrangements for the proper administration of their 
financial affairs and shall secure that one of their officers has 
responsibility for the administration of those affairs. All councils are 
required to set a balanced budget by the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992, and the Local Government Act 2003, section 25, requires the 
council’s Section 151 Officer to report to the council on the robustness 

Page 68



of the estimates made and the adequacy of the proposed financial 
reserves assumed in the budget calculations. 
 
The Local Government Act 2003 also requires a council to ensure that 
it has a minimum level of reserves and balances and requires that the 
Section 151 officer reports that they are satisfied that the annual 
budget about to be agreed does indeed leave the council with at least 
the agreed minimum reserve (legislation does not define how much this 
minimum level should be, instead, the Section 151 officer estimates the 
elements of risk in the council’s finances and then recommends a 
minimum level of reserves to council as part of the annual budget 
setting process). 
 
Every council will also wish to ensure that it has a ‘working balance’ to 
act as a final contingency for unanticipated fluctuations in their 
spending and income. There are no legal or best practice guidelines on 
how much councils should hold in reserves and will depend on the 
local circumstances of the individual council. The only legal 
requirement is that the council must define and attempt to ensure that it 
holds an agreed minimum level of reserves 

 
For BTAC, which in 2019/20 has a precept of £680K and gross 
spending of £719K, the Chief Finance Officer (the Council’s Section 
151 officer) has assessed that £70K (slightly less than 10% of the 
annual gross spend) is an appropriate and adequate sum to be held as 
a minimum working balance to provide resources should actual 
spending and income differ from the budget. This is in addition to the 
unallocated monies held in reserve which are available for one-off 
spending initiatives and reported to each BTAC meeting. 
 
To assist members, the Local Government Association has published 
“A councillor’s workbook on local government finance”, which contains 
helpful information and can be found at -  
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/11.107%20A%20
Councillor%27s%20Workbook%20on%20Local%20Government%20Fi
nance_v02.pdf  

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Entire report and appendices. 
 

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The use of executive powers derives from the Local Government Act 2000. 
 

 
 

Page 69

https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/11.107%20A%20Councillor%27s%20Workbook%20on%20Local%20Government%20Finance_v02.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/11.107%20A%20Councillor%27s%20Workbook%20on%20Local%20Government%20Finance_v02.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/11.107%20A%20Councillor%27s%20Workbook%20on%20Local%20Government%20Finance_v02.pdf


 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 

 
 
 
CONSULTATION 
None 
 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 – Summary of BTAC budget and projected outturn position for 
2019/20, and reserve position as at 31 March 2020.   
 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government 
Act 1972 were used in the production of this report. 
 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 
From July 2016, BTAC members have requested that a financial update 
report be brought to each meeting. 

 

Page 70



APPENDIX 1

REVENUE BUDGET
£ £ £

OPEN SPACES AND PLAY AREAS 67,329 114,760 114,591

ALLOTMENTS RETAINED SUPPORT (631) 1,000 1,000

ADMINISTRATION 23,743 44,060 44,215

CENTRAL PARK 70,672 123,800 123,800

PUBLIC CONVENIENCES 73,632 140,570 141,309

EVENTS 92,829 126,670 126,816

TOWN CENTRE OPERATIVES 46,911 80,740 79,513

OTHER PROJECTS - 48,703 48,703

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 374,485 680,303 679,947

Less income from BTAC Council Tax levy (396,843) (680,303) (680,303)

Deficit / (Surplus) for the year (22,358) - (356)

BTAC RESERVE
Balance brought forward at 1 April 2019 269,419 269,419 -

Projected Deficit / (Surplus) for the year (as above) (22,358) - (356)

Unallocated reserves B/F:- 91,823 -

Allocated spend from Reserves:-
Open Spaces - Trim trail and Gym Equipment 40,000 40,000 40,000
Open Spaces - Central Park MUGA (expected in 19.20) - 36,338 36,338
Open Spaces naturalised planting - 6,179 6,179
Central Park CCTV  -  committed but remaining unspent 10,200 10,200
Public Conveniences Sub Group  - balance from 18.19 - 12,421 12,421
BTAC operatives equipment purchase - balance from 18.19 - 2,458 2,458
Open Spaces -  Play area improvements "Wish List" 56,087 - 54,000
Additonal small grants funding - 5,000

Sub-total: BTAC reserves 96,087 199,419 166,596

Net Movement in Reserves (73,729) (199,419) (166,241)

Estimated balance carry forward as at 31 March 2020 195,690 70,000 103,178

  Total Funds Available for Unallocated Projects at 31 October 2019: £
  Unallocated Total in Annual Budget 2019/20 48,703
  Reserve B/F 01/04/19 269,419
  Less S151 Officer recommended Minimum Reserve (70,000)
  Less Reserves B/F 01/04/19 Expenditure Allocated in 18/19 (107,596)
  Less Reserves B/F 01/04/19 Expenditure Allocated in 19/20 (40,000)
  Less Reserves B/F 01/04/19 Expenditure Allocated in 19/20 (14,000)
  Less Reserves B/F 01/04/19 Expenditure Allocated in 19/20 (5,000)
  Sub-Total Available Funds at 01/04/19 81,526

  Less Forecasted Surplus 2019-20 356

  Total Funds Available 81,882

BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE -  2019/20 projected financial position

 YTD Actual
Expenditure
to 31.10.19

 Annual
Budget
2019/20

 Forecast   12
months
Outturn
2019/20

The recommendation to date from the Section 151 Officer is that the minimum reserve value to ensure that unforeseen budget variances can be
accommodated in-year is £70,000. This is reviewed annually as part of the budget setting process.

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO:                    BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE 

DATE:                                2019 

SUBJECT:                         UPDATE ON TOWN CENTRE OPERATIVES 
ACTIVITY 

REPORT AUTHOR: HEAD OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That Members review and comment on the information presented in the 
report. 
 

 
 

 
REASON FOR REPORT  
 
To update Members on the work undertaken by the BTAC Operatives. 
 
 

 

REPORT 
 
The BTAC Operatives consists of one post jointly funded with the Borough 
(30% contribution from BTAC) and two posts entirely funded by BTAC. 
 
Through the Service Level Agreement with Boston Big Local (BBL) some 
funding has been provided to tackle cigarette litter and Chewing Gum, using 
the Chewing Gum removal machine and the Street Vacuum within the BBL 
area. 
 
One member of the team is on Phased return after undergoing surgery. 
 
 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 73

Agenda Item 4



 

 
WORK PROGRAMME 
 
Dealing with Vandalism and Graffiti 
 
The operatives have dealt with a number of jobs relating to vandalism these 
include:-  Central Park fencing, broken/burnt out bins and road signs being 
dug up. 
 
They have also dealt with 10 incidences of Graffiti.     
 
Weed spraying  
      
          The operatives have continued with the weed spraying programme at:- 
           

 Irby Place 

 B&M Site 

 Station Approach 

 Gassy Pad      

 Haven Bank 

 Irby Street 

 Irby Street Car Park 

 Lawrence Lane 

 Custom House Quay 
 
Ongoing Public Realm Improvement Projects 
 

 The operatives continue to be involved in a number of Boston in Bloom 
horticultural projects. 

 Removing detritus and weeds from various locations including John 
Adams Way, Botolph Street, Bargate Bridge and Wide Bargate. 

 Street vacuuming targeting cigarette ends specifically       

 Continue with the Street Furniture Painting Programme 
  

Reactive Maintenance   
 

 Fence, seating and bin repairs and replacement 

 Replace/refit uneven paving slabs  

 Repair benches  

 
 

 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
None – Report for information only 
 
 

Page 74



 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
None – Report for information only 
 
 

 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None – Report for information only 
 

 
 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None – Report for information only 
 

 

 
ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 
 

 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
No consultation undertaken. 
 
 

 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX 1 Examples of the work completed 
 

 

Page 75



 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government 
Act 1972 were used in the production of this report.  
 

 

 
CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

 
A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council  
 

 

Page 76



Before and After Photos Boston Town 

Area Operatives (October/ November)

P
age 77



P
age 78



P
age 79



P
age 80



P
age 81



Job Completions October/ November

• Cleaning and Clearing Weeds on Botolph Street 

Road Triangle, John Adams Way, Bargate Bridge 

and Wide Bargate

• Graffiti Removal

• Painting Street Furniture• Painting Street Furniture

• Supporting Events

• Cleaning Cattle Market, Botolph Street and Maud 

Street Car Parks

• Installing new bins

• Street Vac Operations

P
age 82



• Removing all Metal Stations from Central Park

• Weed Spraying 

• Supporting Events

• Cleaning Cattle Market, Botolph Street and Maud 

Street Car ParksStreet Car Parks

• Installing new bins

• Street Vac Operations

P
age 83



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
PROSPOSED REMOVAL OF BT PAYPHONES 
 
 
AN ITEM TO BE PRESENTED BY THE CHAIRMAN 
 
 
The Council received a consultation from BT in relation to proposals to remove 8 
payphones in the Borough.  Three of these payphones are within the BTAC area.   
 
The Council has carried out consultation with local groups and given consideration to 
any representations received.  The first notification has been prepared and sent to the 
Secretary of State for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport.   
 
There is now a further consultation prior to a final notification being issued to the 
Secretary of State before the close of the consultation on 12th December 2019.  Any 
comments must be received by the Development Management Department in writing by 
17:15 on 6th December 2019.  
 
The Council’s draft response is attached with those payphones within the BTAC area 
highlighted in yellow. 

Page 85

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Schedule  
Draft decision by Boston Borough Council in response to a proposal by British Telecommunications plc for the removal of public call boxes pursuant to Part 2 
of the Schedule to a Direction published by Ofcom on 14 March 2006 (‘the Direction’). 

 

British Telecommunications plc  

Registered office: 
81 Newgate Street 

London EC1A 7AJ 
Registered in England No 1800000 

www.bt.com   

 

 
Telephone 

Number 
Address 

Post Code Number of 
calls in 
last 12 
months 

Posting 
Completed 

Date 

Agree/ 
Adopt/ 
Object 

Comments/Reasons 

1 01205354038 PCO KIOSK 354038 EASTWOOD ROAD  BOSTON PE21 0PN 34 26/09/2019 Agree 
 

2 01205361121 PCO KIOSK 61121 HAWTHORNTREE CRNR EASTWOOD 

ROAD  BOSTON 

PE21 0PW 1 26/09/2019 Agree 
 

3 01205361789 PCO KIOSK 61789 O/S 222 SLEAFORD RD SLEAFORD ROAD  

BOSTON 

PE21 7PG 1 26/09/2019 Agree 
 

4 01205362902 PCO KIOSK 62902 O/S NO 174 CARLTON ROAD  BOSTON PE21 8LN 421 26/09/2019 Agree High call volume; however, 
no objections received  

5 01205362927 PCO KIOSK 362927 TOWER ROAD ELIZABETH ROAD  

BOSTON 

PE21 9AS 4 26/09/2019 Agree 
 

6 01205760302 PCO KIOSK 760302 OUTSIDE TELEPHONE EXCHANGE 

BRAND END ROAD BUTTERWICK BOSTON 

PE22 0ET 14 26/09/2019 Agree 
 

7 01205820342 PCO KIOSK 820342 SWINESHEAD BRIDGE SWINESHEAD 

BOSTON 

PE20 3PT 2 26/09/2019 Adopt Swineshead Parish 
Council interested in 
adopting; Parish Clerk 
contact; 
swinesheadpc@gmail.com  

8 01205870591 PCO PCO1 CHURCH END WRANGLE BOSTON PE22 9EH 0 26/09/2019 Agree 
 

 

P
age 87

mailto:swinesheadpc@gmail.com


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE – WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20 

 
   

MEETING AGENDA ITEM 
 

LEAD OFFICER / MEMBER / GUEST 
   

12 JUNE 2019  Appointment of Chairman 

 Appointment of Vice-Chairman 

 BTAC 2018/19 Financial Position Update 

 Update on Work of BTAC Operatives  

 Draft Annual BTAC Report  

Clerk 
Chairman  

Tim Sampson 
Phil Perry  

“ 
    

21ST AUG 2019  BTAC 2019/20 Financial Position Update 

 Update on Work of BTAC Operatives 

Tim Sampson 
Phil Perry 

    

2ND OCT 2019  Locking Central Park Gates (possibly November) 

 BTAC 2019/20 Financial Position Update 

 BTAC Small Grants Scheme – Applications  

 Events Review 

 The Committee’s Tour of Assets 

 Update on Work of BTAC Operatives 

Phil Perry 
Tim Sampson 
Maddy Eyre 
Phil Perry 

Matt Fisher 
Phil Perry 

    

27TH NOV 2019  2020/21 Events Programme Update 

 Setting up a Town Council  

 BTAC 2019/20 Financial Position Update 

 Update on Work of BTAC Operatives 

 Proposed Removal of BT Payphones  

Phil Drury 
Paul Julian  
Phil Perry 

“ 
“ 

    

8TH JAN 2020  PROPOSED BUDGET WORKSHOP Paul Julian 
    

22ND JAN 2020  BTAC 2019/20 Financial Position Update  

 BTAC Small Grants Scheme – Applications  

 Update on Work of BTAC Operatives 

 Play Area Improvements ‘Wish List’ 

Tim Sampson 
Maddy Eyre 
Phil Perry 

“ 

    

  

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 6



MEETING AGENDA ITEM 
 

LEAD OFFICER / MEMBER / GUEST 
   

25TH MAR 2020  BTAC 2019/20 Financial Position Update 

 BTAC Small Grants Scheme – Applications  

 Update on Work of BTAC Operatives 

 Speed Indicating Devices – Annual Review and discussion with 
Road Safety Partnership  

 Central Park Project (including CCTV) 

Tim Sampson 
Maddy Eyre 
Phil Perry 

 
Andy Fisher 

 
Phil Perry 

    

 

 

 

FUTURE AGENDA: 
        

 Community hub on London Road, its use and its future 
 

 P
age 90


	Agenda
	B MINUTES
	1 2020-21 EVENTS PROGRAMME UPDATE
	Chairman’s revised option budget – 2020/21

	2 SETTING UP A TOWN COUNCIL
	BTAC Report of 13.2.13 - Formation of a Town Council
	Making it easier to set up new town and parish councils - DCLG consultation paper
	Making it easier to set up new town and parish councils - Discussion paper
	Introduction
	Problems with the current process
	Options for making it easier to set up new parish councils
	Option one - amending existing guidance
	Timescales
	Scope
	Internal review of decision
	Election timetables
	Implementation
	Advantages and disadvantages

	Option two - changing the law (including doing so after amending guidance)
	Petition threshold
	Scope of review
	Timescale
	Links to electoral timetables 
	Implementation
	Advantages and disadvantages

	Option three - making it easier for neighbourhood forums to start the process for creating a new parish council
	How would it work? 
	Using guidance
	Implementation
	Advantages and disadvantages


	Making the change - a call for evidence
	Assessing the impacts

	Annex A: The current process for setting up a new parish council
	The current process

	Annex B: Parish councils - Key facts


	BTAC Minutes of 13 Feb 2013
	BTAC Report of 11.12.13 - Formation of a Town Council
	BTAC Minutes of 11 Dec 2013
	Setting up a Town Council - Information from the Website

	3 BTAC 2019/20 FINANCIAL POSITION UPDATE AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2019
	Appendix 1 – Summary of BTAC budget and projected outturn position for 2019/20, and reserve position as at 31 March 2020.

	4 UPDATE ON TOWN CENTRE OPERATIVES ACTIVITY
	APPENDIX 1

	5 PROPOSED REMOVAL OF BT PAYPHONES
	First Response schedule - phone boxes

	6 WORK PROGRAMME 2019-20



